
Agenda for a meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to be held on Thursday, 2 February 
2017 at 5.30 pm in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, 
Bradford

Members of the Committee – Councillors

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT THE 
INDEPENDENTS

BM Smith
Rickard
Cooke

Warburton
Green
Arshad Hussain
Watson
Bacon

J Sunderland Naylor

Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT THE 

INDEPENDENTS
Mallinson
Townend
M Pollard

Greenwood
T Hussain
Thirkill
Jamil
Shaheen

Ward Hawkesworth

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact 
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. 
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be 
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Yusuf Patel
Phone: 01274 434579
E-Mail: yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  MINUTES

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meetings held on 5 and 11 January 2017 
be signed as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Yusuf Patel – 01274 434579)



4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Yusuf Patel – 01274 434579)

5.  REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

No referrals were made at the time of the publication of this agenda.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

6.  QTR 3 FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT FOR 2016-17

The report of the Director of Corporate Services (Document “AK” – 
Report to Follow) provides Members with an overview of the forecast 
financial position of the Council for 2016-17.

It examines the latest spend against revenue and capital budgets and 
forecasts the financial position at the year end. It states the Council’s 
current balances and reserves and forecasts school balances for the 
year.  

The report will also be considered by the Executive at its meeting on 7 
February 2017.

Recommended – 

That the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee  review and 
comment on the QTR 3 Financial Position Statement.

(Andrew Cross – 01274 436823)



7.  BRADFORD POVERTY SCRUTINY REVIEW AND CORPORATE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
PROGRESS REPORT

The Strategic Director Place will submit a report (Document “AL”) 
which provides a progress update on implementation of the 
recommendations made by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 29 June 2016 and Executive on the 19 July 2016, 
that followed the Bradford Poverty Scrutiny Review. 

Recommended –
That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

(1) Accept the progress made to date against the 
recommendations of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 29 June 2016 and Executive on the 19 
July 2016. 

(2) Suggest other actions the Committee believes the Council 
and or its partners should or could be taking to make a 
positive impact against poverty in the District. 

(Helen Johnston - 01274 434401)

1 - 28

8.  DISCRETIONARY PAYMENTS

The Assistant Director Revenues, Benefits and Payroll will submit a 
report (Document “AM”) which provides an update on the support 
provided by the Council, to financially vulnerable residents, through the 
Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) scheme and the Assisted 
Purchase Scheme (APS) during the period 1 April 2016 to 31 
December 2016

Recommended –

That the Committee; 

(1) Note the contents of this report and the work that has 
taken place on both Discretionary Housing Payments 
and Local Welfare Support.

(2) Offer a view on how any future DHP scheme might look 
in the context of linking it to helping the young and most 
vulnerable in the District and the Chief Executives 
forthcoming report to Executive.

(3) Provide a view on what any future Local Welfare Support 
Scheme should look like in view of the limited take up 
of the current scheme.

(Paul Bland - 01274 437874)

29 - 40



9.  CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 2016/17

The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee will 
submit a report (Document “AN”) which sets out the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2016/17.  
 
Recommended –

(1) That members consider and comment on the areas of work 
included in the work programme.

(2) That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that 
they may wish to conduct.

(Mustansir Butt – 01274 432574)

41 - 54

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Report of the Strategic Director of Corporate 
Services to the meeting of the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 2nd February 
2017. 

AK 
 
 

Subject:   
 

Qtr 3 Financial Position Statement for 2016-17 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report provides Members with an overview of the forecast financial position of the 
Council for 2016-17. 
 
It examines the latest spend against revenue and capital budgets and forecasts the financial 
position at the year end. It states the Council’s current balances and reserves and forecasts 
school balances for the year.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Stuart McKinnon-Evans 
Strategic Director – Corporate 
Services 
 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader of the Council and Corporate 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Cross 
Business Adviser Management 
Accounting 
(01274) 436823 
andrew.cross@bradford.gov.uk 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
Corporate 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/

mailto:andrew.cross@bradford.gov.uk


2 
 

QUARTER 3 FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT FOR 2016-17 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
This report is the third monitoring report presented to Members on the Council’s 2016-17 
financial position. It provides an early indication of the revenue and capital financial position 
of the Council at the 31st March 2017.  
 
The report covers  

 The forecast outturn of the Council’s revenue budget including management 

mitigations where issues have been identified. 

 The delivery of 2016-17 approved budget savings plans. 

 A statement on the Council’s reserves including movements in the 3rd  quarter.  

 An update on the Capital Investment Plan. 

 An update on Council Tax and Business Rates collection.  

 
2.0 MAIN FINANCIAL MESSAGES 
 
Based on December 31st 2016 projection, the Council is forecasting that spend will be 
£0.2m above the approved budget of £378.1m, a £5.8m improvement from the forecast 
position reported at Qtr 2 resulting from stringent actions taken to balance the books. The 
improved position is mainly due to; 
 

 A £2m improvement on Central budgets to a forecast underspend of £3.2m 
resulting from lower capital financing costs due to lower than planned capital 
expenditure and lower interest rate loans. 

 A £2.0m reduction in the Health and Wellbeing Services forecast overspend to 
£3.2m due to a £0.8m improvement in Purchased Care, £0.7m utilisation of non-
recurrent funding and £0.5m of further underspends across the department. 

 A £0.6m increase in the Department of Finance underspend to £1.2m, due 
mostly to further reductions in IT costs following the end of the IBM contract. 

 £1.2m of smaller scale improvements shared across Human Resources, 
Children’s Services, Regeneration, and Non Service. 

 
Despite the significant improvement in the forecast position, there are however a number of 
material budget variances within services. These include. 
 

 The Department of Health and Wellbeing (formerly Adult Services and Public 
Health) are forecast to overspend the £120.7m net expenditure budget (£203.5m 
Gross Budget) by £3.2m. This is caused mainly by a £3.9m forecast overspend 
on Purchased Care; a £0.8m underachievement of service user income, a £0.4m 
recurrent overspend on the BACES equipment service, £0.2m overspend on No 
Recourse to Public Funds, £0.3m on Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLS), 
offset by underspends of £2.2m across the department. Public Health is also 
forecast to underspend by £0.2m and deliver savings as planned as outlined. 
Section 5.1 provides further detail.  

 

 Children Services are forecast to overspend the £80.9m net expenditure budget 
(£545.5m Gross budget) by £2.9m (£3.1m at Qtr 2).  The forecast overspend is 
mainly within Looked After Children Purchased Placements, and Fees and 
Allowances paid for other Children requiring support. The overspend in 

Page 2



3 
 

Children’s Social Care services is underpinned by a 9% increase in children 
coming into care.  This rise is 23% nationally. Section 5.2 provides further detail. 

 

 The forecast overspends in Adults and Children’s Social Care services linked to high 
demand outlined above, are partly mitigated by forecast underspends in other 
departments. 

 

 Regarding the £45.6m budgeted savings that are included in the budgets outlined 
above, there are risks associated with the underachievement of a number of plans 
and it is forecast that £8.7m of savings will not be delivered as intended. The main 
underachieved savings are linked to Health and Wellbeing - Adult Services(£3.3m), 
Transport Assistance (£3.0m), Looked After Children (£1.8m), a number of smaller 
underachievement’s that are outlined in section 4.2 – Delivery of budget savings 
proposals. One of the aims of this report is to flag these so that necessary action can 
be taken. 
 

 A fuller analysis of the main departmental variances to budget are outlined in section 
5 - Service commentaries. Actions taken between now and the end of the financial 
year, together with additional issues that might arise, such as the need to provide for 
future redundancy and pension costs will affect the ultimate outturn position. Any 
overspend at the year end would have to be funded from Council Reserves. 

 

 At 31st December allocated and unallocated reserves stand at £150.4m of which 
£116.6m relate to the Council and £33.8m relate to Schools. 

 

 During 2016-17 there has been a net reduction in total reserves of £17.3m including 
£11.4m of reserves to support the 2016/17 budget. 

 

 Unallocated reserves currently stand at £13.8m as a contingency reserve which is 
equivalent to 3.6% of the Council’s net budget (or just 1.6% of the Council’s gross 
budget excluding schools). 

 

 The budget consultation document published in December 2016 indicated that there 
would be a further call on reserves over the next four years of £19.4m. Given that the 
Council is operating in a challenging climate, with reduced resources and increased 
demand, the budget proposals are looking to re-designate existing earmarked 
reserves to provide for redundancy costs, transformation funding and to close the 
budgetary gap due to timing differences. 
 

 It is worth noting: 

 This class of reserves can cushion less and less the impact of the revenue 
budget deficit 

 There are significant residual risks to the delivery of the proposed savings 

 Having very constrained reserves provides limited resource to finance non-
recurrent invest-to-save, transformational activity or respond to unforeseen 
events. 
 

 The table below shows the reduction in Council reserves over the last few years 
together with the projected use of reserves as outlined in the budget proposals. The 
table illustrates how Council reserves are planned to reduce by 33% as we move 
towards 2021. A reduction that is inclusive of a 59% reduction in unallocated 
reserves which has already been made by the end of 2016-17. 
 
 

Page 3



4 
 

 
 Recent use of Council reserves and forecast use to 2021 

Date Unallocated Earmarked Total Council 
 £m £m £m 
31/03/2015 33.7 112.1 145.8 
31/03/2016 19.9 114.1 134.0 
Forecast use to 2021 13.8 83.6 97.4 

% Reduction 31/03/2015 to 2021 59% 25% 33% 
Source - Proposed Financial Plan 2017/18 – 2020/21 Executive Report 6 December 2016 

 

 Regarding Capital Expenditure, the profiled resource position for 2016-17 for the 
Capital Investment Plan (CIP) stands at £80.2m with £39.9m incurred at 31st 
December.  Section 7.0 provides further detail. 
 

 Since the Qtr 2 report, £17m has been added to the Capital Investment Plan in future 
years to fund the Bereavement Strategy that will provide long term and sustainable 
Bereavement Service infrastructure. A report outlining the Strategy was presented to   
Executive Board on the 8th  November 2016. 

 

 Regarding Council Tax,  by statute the Council will receive its £159.9m budgeted 
share of Council Tax in 2016-17, with any difference in the actual amount collected 
carried forward into 2017-18. A surplus of £2m is projected in 2016-17, helping the 
2017-18 budget by the same amount. 
 

 By the end of the Qtr 3 the Council had collected over 3 Qtrs (75.25%) of the 
£146.24m of the value of Council Tax bills. This is both above target (74.9%) and a 
marginal improvement on the same stage last year. 
 

 Also by statute the Council in 2016-17 will receive its £74.1m budgeted share of 
Business Rates from the Collection Fund with any difference in the actual amount 
collected carried forward into 2017-18. A deficit of £5.8m is projected in 2016-17 
causing an equivalent pressure to the 2017-18 budget. 
 

 The shortfall is caused by the impact of successful appeals, which require the 
Council to pay out refunds and reduce on-going Business Rate income. For example, 
appeals caused higher than expected refunds and reductions in rateable values in 
some city centre areas. A report detailing the calculation of the Business Rates base 
including an explanation of the lower than forecast Business Rates was presented to 
Executive on 10/01/2017. 

 
 At 31 December 2016, the Council had collected £118.3m (78.35%) of the value of 

Business Rates bills for the year compared with £115.2m (79.21%) at the same point 
last year. The reduction in the % of total bills collected is in part due to changes in 
rateable value for several large value properties resulting in payments not being 
collected in the month and the payment plan being recalculated over the reminder of 
the year. Whilst this has improved since September’s report the knock on effects will 
continue to the end of the year. 
 

Page 4



5 
 

3.0 COUNCIL REVENUE FORECAST 
 
2016-17 Revenue Budget  
 
The Council’s approved net revenue budget of £378.1m is forecast to overspend by £0.2m. 
The budget is after £45.6m of service and non service budget savings.  
 
3.1 2016-17 Revenue Forecast as at 31st December 2016 
 
 

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Services to the public & 

businesses

Health and Wellbeing 203.5 206.2 2.7 82.7 82.3 0.5 120.7 124.0 3.2

Children's Services 545.5 549.0 3.5 464.6 465.2 -0.6 80.9 83.8 2.9

Environment & Sport 91.2 92.4 1.2 45.1 46.5 -1.3 46.0 46.0 -0.1

Regeneration 85.2 83.2 -2.1 46.2 44.4 1.7 39.1 38.7 -0.3

Revenues & Benefits 178.3 189.9 11.6 175.0 186.8 -11.8 3.3 3.1 -0.2

Total services to the public 

& businesses
1,103.7 1,120.7 17.1 813.6 825.2 -11.6 290.1 295.5 5.5

Support services and non 

service

Chief Executive 4.5 4.3 -0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 4.4 4.1 -0.2

City Solicitor 8.4 7.9 -0.4 2.2 2.1 0.1 6.2 5.9 -0.3

Human Resources 7.9 7.7 -0.2 1.9 2.1 -0.2 6.0 5.6 -0.4

Finance (Excluding 

Revenues & Benefits)
20.1 18.9 -1.1 1.9 1.7 0.2 18.2 17.3 -0.9

Non Service Budgets 7.2 7.1 -0.2 1.3 1.4 -0.1 5.9 5.7 -0.3

Total support services and 

non service
48.0 45.9 -2.1 7.3 7.3 0.0 40.7 38.6 -2.1

Central Budgets & Net 

Transfers To Reserves
71.4 63.2 -8.3 24.1 19.0 5.1 47.3 44.1 -3.2

Total Council Spend 1,223.1 1,229.8 6.7 845.0 851.5 -6.5 378.1 378.3 0.2

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 

Page 5



6 
 

4.2  Delivery of Budgeted Savings proposals 
 
The combined budget savings of £45.6m in 2016-17 (£44.6m approved by Council in 
February 20161, and a further £1.0m Government cut to the Public Health Grant) brings the 
total savings the Council has had to find in the six years following the 2010 Comprehensive 
Spending Review (CSR) to £218.3m. 
 
Table 2- Year on Year savings since 2010 CSR 

 £m 

2011-12 48.7 

2012-13  28.5 

2013-14 26.1 

2014-15 31.8 

2015-16 37.7 

2016-17 45.6 

Total savings   218.3 

 
In tracking progress made against each individual saving proposal, £36.9m (81%) of the 
£45.6m is forecast to be delivered, leaving £8.7m that is forecast not to be delivered. 
 

Saving Tracker 

Service  

Original 
Budgeted 

Savings 

Revised 
Savings

2
 

Forecasted 
Variance at Qtr. 

3 

Health and Wellbeing (Formerly Adult 
Services and Public Health)  

13.9 14.0 3.3 

Children’s Services  3.2 3.7 1.8 

Regeneration  4.1 4.3 0.7 

Environment & Sport  3.2 3.5 0.0 

Director of Finance 7.1 7.2 0.0 

City Solicitor 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Chief Executives Office 0.2 0.2 0.0 

Director of Human Resources 0.7 1.0 0.0 

Non Service Budgets and cross cutting 10.2 8.8 0.0 

Travel assistance 3.0 3.0 3.0 

Total 45.6 45.6 8.7 

 
The forecast underachieved savings is higher than it has been in prior years reflecting the 
increased difficulty of delivering savings. 
 
 
 Budgeted Savings £ms Underachieved Savings £ms 

2013/14 26.1 4.4 
2014/15 31.8 2.3 
2015/16 37.7 4.9 
2016/17 (Forecast) 45.6 8.7 

 
The main planned savings that are at risk of not being delivered in full are: 

                                            
1
 £27.4m of savings agreed in Feb 2015 that impact on 2016-17 budget, and £17.3m of additional 

savings agreed in Feb 2016. 
2
 Revised savings include £1.5m of savings linked to Transactional support being allocated to 

departments from cross cutting, and £0.1m of savings linked to Connexions being implemented by 
Environment and Sport. 

Page 6



7 
 

 
4.2.1   Travel Assistance 
 

 Informed by extensive public consultation, the Executive in June 2015 approved a 
revised Travel Assistance Policy based on principles and guidance contained in a 
joint framework between Children’s and Adults. The £3m savings reduction in 2015-
16 transport assistance was underachieved by £1.8m and there is a further saving of 
£3.0m in 2016-17.  
 

 A robust action plan for travel assistance has been developed to address the 
requirement to make savings from this budget.  A proposal is currently under 
consultation for the  establishment of a new Travel Assistance Service sited within 
Children’s Services reporting to the Assistant Director for Performance, Partnership 
 and Commissioning.   Contact with parents and carers who have expressed interest 
in personal travel budgets is about to commence,  undertaken by staff from 
Revenues and Benefits team who have expertise in this area.  The plan will promote 
independence and realise savings. 

 

 Additionally, the Council also agreed to allocate £0.6m of investment over 2 years 
from 2016-17 to support the provision of Travel Training.  
 

 The forecast underachievement of savings is covered by Corporate contingencies in 
2016-17. 
 

 
4.2.2 Health and Wellbeing  £14.0m saving, £3.3m forecast underachievement 
 

 The combined saving of £2.0m planned to be delivered by reducing the number of 
external Older People Residential Care placements by promoting independent living 
and increasing the number of long stay service users in in-house homes is forecast to 
be underachieved by £1.4m.  Numbers are reducing but not as quickly as planned. 

 

 £0.4m of savings linked to the closure of an in-house residential home are forecast 
not to be delivered as the home remains open. To mitigate the underachievement 
£0.4m of reserves have been drawn down whilst the Great Places to Grow Old 
strategy is implemented. 

 

 Of the £0.7m of savings linked to increased contributions from Adults Service users, 
£0.7m is forecast to be unachieved. £0.5m of the underachievement is due to an 
extended consultation period on the recently approved new charging policy, with the 
remaining £0.2m due to the time taken to review and financially assess Mental Health 
clients. 

 

 £1m of savings planned to be delivered by renegotiating Adults high cost placements 
are forecast to be underachieved by £0.1m due to the time taken to review and 
negotiate costs with providers. The underachievement is not expected to recur in 
2017-18. 

 

 £1.5m savings planned to be delivered by Learning Disability commissioning savings 
are forecast to be underachieved by £0.6m. The savings shortfall in 2016-17 is due to 
both provider changes and contractual arrangements leading to a delay in 
implementation. The underachievement is not expected to recur in 2017-18. 

 

Page 7



8 
 

 £0.1m saving from increased contributions from the Police and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups is unachieved as further funding is not available at this point. 

 
4.2.3 Children’s £3.7m, £1.8m forecast not to be achieved. 
 

 £0.8m of savings planned to be delivered by reducing the number of Looked After 
Children by 75 to 800 are forecast not to be delivered as numbers are increasing 
(from 874 in 2015-16 to 926 at Qtr 3 2016-17). 

 

 £0.6m of savings planned to be delivered by bringing Looked After Children cared for 
outside of Bradford back into the district are forecast not to be delivered as numbers 
are increasing. 

 

 £0.4m of savings planned to be delivered by reducing payments to Foster Carers due 
to a reduction in the number of Looked After Children, and reducing retainer and 
allowance payments to Foster Carers is forecast to be underachieved by £0.2m due 
to a delay in the second phase of plans to review care packages.  

 

 Children’s services plan to mitigate the overspend on Purchased Placements and 
Allowances by reviewing the sufficiency and commissioning strategy; Re-
commissioning block contracts for residential and fostering provision; reviewing the 
care plans of all young people in Purchased Placements who can return internally or 
to an Independent Foster Agency placement, and increasing the capacity of the In-
House Fostering Service through training and recruitment. 

 

 £0.6m of savings linked to streamlining the service and staffing efficiencies is 
forecast to be underachieved by £0.2m. A restructure of Admin services is underway 
which will generate the saving for 2017-18. 

 

4.2.4   Regeneration  £4.3m, £0.7m forecast underachievement 
 

 As at this stage in the reporting calendar there has been no reported change in 
forecasts since the mid year point. £0.4m of savings planned to be delivered by 
reducing the number of posts in Development Management and increasing income 
are forecast to be underachieved by £0.3m. The full year effect of the saving will be 
achieved in 2017-18 however timing in the restructuring process means fewer posts 
will have been deleted by the end of 2016-17 than had been initially planned. 
Consultation has proceeded as planned with staff and trade unions this will allow 
further progress in delivery of the saving . 

 

 £0.2m of savings planned to be delivered by transferring some functions to the West 
Yorkshire Combined Authority are not being achieved and progress is dependent on 
the WYCA ‘One Organisation’ strategy. Offsetting underspends in planned 
maintenance and overall cost control help instead to balance the account. 

 

 Of the £0.7m of Highways Asset Management savings, £0.2m is forecast to be 
underachieved. Originally, the service had expected to be able to reduce the 
corporate Insurance Premium through expected favourable changes in capping 
associated legal costs. It also planned to invest to save in Street Lighting. However, 
the Insurance Premium hasn’t reduced as planned, and the invest to save projects 
will likely result in a phased achievement in the savings overall. Instead, Highways 
applied a range of mitigating savings in highway maintenance, footway maintenance, 
traffic signals, depots, vehicles. Most of the savings are on track for a full year saving 
but the timing means £0.2m will cross over into early 2017-18. 

 

Page 8



9 
 

5.0 SERVICE COMMENTARIES 
 
5.1 Department of Health and Wellbeing 
 

 The department of Health and Wellbeing (formerly Adult Services and Public Health) 
is forecast to overspend the £120.7m net expenditure budget by £3.2m (£5.2m at Qtr 
2).  

 The forecast overspend is caused mainly by a £3.4m overspend within Adult 
Services comprising £3.9m on Purchased Care; a £0.8m underachievement of 
service user income, a £0.4m recurrent overspend on the BACES equipment service, 
£0.2m overspend on No Recourse to Public Funds, £0.3m on Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DOLS), offset by underspends of £2.2m across the department as 
outlined below. 

 The forecast overspend on Adult Services is partly offset by a £0.2m forecast in 
Public Health. 

 The £120.7m Health and Wellbeing net budget above includes £14.0m of 2016-17 
budget savings; the forecast is currently showing a 76% achievement of the target, 
giving a shortfall of £3.3m. 

5.1.1 Health and Wellbeing – Adult Services 

Budget Forecast Variance Budget  Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Purchased Care 98.2 102.1 3.9 16.8 16.8 0.0 81.4 85.3 3.9

Community Care Services 10.1 10.0 -0.1 8.3 8.4 -0.1 1.8 1.6 -0.2

In-house Residential & Day Care 12.3 12.5 0.2 4.0 4.4 -0.4 8.3 8.1 -0.2

Access, Assessment & Support 13.5 12.9 -0.6 2.7 2.8 -0.1 10.8 10.1 -0.7

No Recourse to Public Funds 0.8 1.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 1.0 0.2

Other Operational Services 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0

Non-Residential Charges 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4 2.6 0.8 -3.4 -2.6 0.8

Commissioned Services 5.9 5.7 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 5.7 -0.2

Integration & Transition 15.2 15.0 -0.2 2.3 2.1 0.2 12.9 12.9 0.0

Strategic Director 0.9 0.7 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.7 0.5 -0.2

Total 157.3 160.3 3.0 37.7 37.3 0.4 119.6 123.0 3.4

Gross Expenditure Income Net Expenditure

Adult Services

 

 

5.1.1.1  Purchased Care 
 

 Purchased Care is forecast to overspend the £81.4m by £3.9m; included in this 
overspend is £2.1m of unachieved savings from an overall Purchased Care savings 
target of £5.5m.  
 

 In August 2016 a new payment system, Controc, was introduced to process 
payments to care providers.  As with many new systems there have been a number 
of early implementation issues, particularly with regards to the coding of expenditure 
and the reports produced to forecast activity and expenditure.  Therefore, the 
forecast at Qtr 3 comes with a degree of caution regarding the activity and its impact 
on the forecast.  Work is on-going to develop the reporting features of the new 
system to aid the forecasting model and produce activity data. 
 

 

 

Page 9



10 
 

5.1.1.2  Older People (OP) Purchased Care 

 The table below shows that Older People services are providing higher levels of 
Community Care (Home Care, Direct Payments), and less Residential and Nursing 
Care in line with the departments strategy. 

 
 

 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
2016-17 
Forecast 

Average Older People Residential Population  1,000 980 943 905 

Average Older People Nursing Population 403 488 346 351 

Total Residential and Nursing  1,403 1,468 1,289 1,256 

Average Older People in receipt of Homecare 1,378 1,425 1,426 1,472 

Average Older People in receipt of Direct Payments 88 96 104 129 

Total Community Care 1,466 1,521 1,530 1,601 

Total 2,869 2,989 2,819 2,857 

 

 Despite the positive direction of travel regarding the strategy, Older People 
Purchased Care is however forecast to overspend the £23.1m net expenditure 
budget by £1.8m.  The breakdown of the expenditure is as follows: 
 

 Older People Residential Fees is forecast to overspend the £8.7m net expenditure 
budget (£14.9m gross expenditure budget) by £1.2m due to the delay in fully 
achieving the £2m 2016-17 budget savings from:  

o Promoting independent living  (£1.2m) 
o Increasing the number of long stay service users in in-house homes (£0.8m).  

 

 Activity data is indicating a 1,960 reduction in the number of bed weeks purchased to 
47,086 compared to 2015-16.  This is as a result of increases in in-house long stay 
beds (+19 clients to 71), with the remainder due to promoting independent living. 
 

 Consequently £0.3m of the £0.8m saving, and £0.3m of the £1.2m saving are 
forecast to be delivered, leaving a £1.4m aggregate underachievement.  
 

 To reduce demand to achieve the saving target level the service is working closely 
with the NHS to ensure that at discharge from hospital all clients are accessing re-
ablement services before any appropriate long term service is agreed.  The service 
manager is also closely monitoring the number of placements being made.  

 

 Older People Nursing Fees is forecast to underspend the £5.6m net expenditure 
budget by £0.4m due to a forecast reduction of 1,374 weeks to 19,626 weeks in 
2016-17. This underspend position is helping to offset the pressure on residential 
fees. 

 

 Older People Home Support is forecast to overspend the £9.4m gross expenditure 
budget by £0.5m.  It is part of the department’s strategy to decrease typically more 
costly older people residential placements and increase homecare provision in the 
community. 
 

 Older People Direct Payments is forecast to overspend the £0.9m net expenditure 
budget by £0.3m due to a forecast increase of 26 in the average population to 129 in 
2016-17.   Despite the overspend, this is a positive direction of travel in line with the 

Page 10



11 
 

strategy of increasing the use of direct payments to give more choice to service 
users. To increase the numbers of direct payments the department is currently 
working on providing a specification for service users setting out the brokerage 
service options for those wishing to have a direct payment. 

 
 Older People Respite is forecast to overspend the £0.3m net expenditure budget by 

£0.2m due to an increase in the number of respite nights purchased in the 
independent sector as a result of the service been unable to place clients in internal 
respite beds, as they are being utilised for long stay clients. 

 
5.1.1.3  Physical Disabilities (PD) Purchased Care 
 

 Physical Disabilities are forecast to underspend the £6.9m net expenditure budget by 
£0.6m.   This is mainly as a result of a significant reduction in home care hours due 
to the work Occupational Therapists helping reduce the number of double-ups (home 
care sessions requiring two home care staff) provided by advising on equipment use 
to promote independence. 

 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
2016-17 
Forecast 

Average PD Residential Population  88 83 85 77 

Average PD Nursing Population 59 56 55 53 

Average PD Population in receipt of Homecare 242 237 203 223 

Average PD Population in receipt of Direct Payments 133 133 132 137 

Total 522 509 475 490 

 
 
5.1.1.4  Learning Disabilities (LD) Purchased Care  

 

 The table below demonstrates the large increase in the number of Learning Disability 
clients supported. The table also shows a positive direction of travel regarding the 
strategy of reducing residential and nursing placements and increasing community 
care services (i.e. Supported Living, homecare, day care and direct payments) that 
promote independence. 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

2016-17 

Forecast 

Average LD People Residential Population  134 136 133 131 

Average LD Residential Population – block 

contract 

56 56 56 56 

Average LD People Nursing Population 53 53 50 32 

Average LD Nursing Population – block contract 12 12 12 12 

Total Residential and Nursing Care 255 257 251 231 

Average LD People in receipt of Homecare 416 445 501 490 

Average LD Day Care Contracts 265 292 352 433 

Average LD Supported Living  220 220 217 224 

Average LD people in receipt of Direct Payments 266 280 356 396 

Total Community Care 1,167 1,237 1,426 1,543 

Total  1,422 1,494 1,677 1,774 

*Includes Individual Living Funds from 2015-16 

Page 11



12 
 

 Despite the positive direction of travel the service is forecast to overspend the 
£44.7m net expenditure budget by £2.2m as detailed below. 

 Learning Disabilities Residential Fees are forecast to overspend the £8.8m net 

expenditure budget by £1.3m; of which £1m is due to an overspend on purchased 

residential fees and £0.3m is due to an underachievement of savings on the 

residential block contract. 

 The £1m LD Residential fees forecast overspend is mainly due to a recurrent 

overspend from 2015-16 of £0.6m and a further £0.3m due to rising unit costs (+£70 

to £1,220 per week) caused by new high costs placements for service users with 

complex needs. 

 To mitigate the overspend the department’s dedicated LD reviewing team will 

continue to review client’s packages of care and negotiate costs with providers.  The 

department also works closely with the NHS to share the cost of high cost 

placements where a client has both health and social care needs.   

 

 Learning Disabilities Nursing Fees budget is forecast to overspend the £4.6m net 

budget by £0.4m.  This is due to an increase in costs associated with the transfer of a 

LD nursing block contract to a new provider.  This is not a recurrent overspend; plans 

are being developed to transform the model of care which will reduce costs over a 

period of time. 

 

 Learning Disabilities Home Care is forecast to balance the £7.7m net expenditure 

budget.   The forecast assumes an increase in costs of £0.1m from 2015-16 outturn.  

The forecast has significantly improved since Qtr2 which reported £0.9m overspend.  

The reduction is mainly due to less hours per client per week forecast, however the 

third quarter forecast has a degree of caution attached due to the new payment 

system and the volatility of the expenditure. 

 

 Learning Disabilities Day Care is forecast to overspend the £8.1m net expenditure 

budget by £0.2m.  Unachieved savings on LD day care procurement amount to 

£0.3m; the underachievement is not expected to be recurrent and plans are being 

developed for achievement in 2017-18.  This is offset by an underspend of £0.1m on 

the LD Day Care ‘spot contract’ forecast (£1.8m gross budget).  This forecast has 

also significantly improved from Qtr 2; the forecast gross expenditure has reduced by 

£0.6m to £1.8m.  As highlighted above there is an element of risk to this forecast due 

to the implementation of the new system. 

 

 Learning Disabilities Direct Payments is forecast to overspend the £3m net 

expenditure budget by £0.5m due to an increase in the average population of 39 to 

396 in 2016-17 in line with the strategy. 

 

 The service is continuing to carry out audits of direct payments, resulting in the 

recovery of unused funds.  The forecast assumes £0.4m will be recovered in 2016-

17, which is £0.2m above the target. 

 

Page 12



13 
 

 Learning Disability Supported Living Services are forecast to underspend the 

£10.4m net expenditure budget by £0.2m due to accelerated savings on reduced 

hours and TUPE reductions. 

 

5.1.1.5   Mental Health (MH) Purchased Care 

 

 The table below shows that the Mental Health Purchased Care is relatively static 

except for increases in homecare and direct payments in line with the strategy. 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
2016-17 
Forecast 

Average MH People Residential Population  131 135 143 139 

Average MH People Nursing Population 63 58 50 51 

Average MH People in receipt of Homecare - 141 108 128 

Average MH people in receipt of Direct Payments 25 22 21 43 

Total  219 356 322 361 

 
 The service is however forecast to overspend the £6.3m net expenditure budget by 

£0.6m. 
 

 Mental Health Residential Fees is forecast to overspend the £2.9m net expenditure 
budget by £0.3m due to a recurrent pressure from 2015-16. 
 

 The service has a budget reduction of £0.3m from the 2016-17 High Cost Placement 
savings target of £1m and it is forecast that this will be fully achieved by the year end 
mainly as a result of review carried out by the MH Reviewing team helping to move 
clients to independent living with less support required.  Without the impact of the 
reviewing teams both the weeks of care and the unit cost figure would be higher. 
 

 The MH Reviewing Team will continue to review all residential placements, to reduce 
the cost of care and to move clients onto independent living where appropriate. 
 

 Mental Health Home Support is forecast to overspend the £1.1m net expenditure 
budget by £0.3m due in part to a recurrent pressure from 2015-16 and increases in 
the number of clients. 
 

 Drugs and Alcohol are forecast to underspend the £0.4m net expenditure budget by 
£0.1m due to 5 fewer clients forecast than the 2016-17 budgeted amount of 13 
clients. 
 
 

5.1.1.6 BACES Equipment Service 
 

 The Bradford and Airedale Community Equipment Service (BACES) are forecast 
to overspend the £0.3m net expenditure budget (£2.7m gross budget, pooled with 
health) by £0.4m.   
 

 The forecast overspend is a combination of demographic growth; as more clients are 
supported at home the number of service users requiring support is increasing.   
 
 

 

Page 13



14 
 

BACES Pooled budget 2015-16 
Outturn 

2016-17 
Forecast 

Total Number of Items Lent 36,267 35,887 
Total Number of Clients Receiving Equipment 10,392 11,129 

 

 Clients are also presenting with more complex needs which is reflected in the 
increase in ‘special orders’ requested for new equipment not previously funded. 
 

Financial year 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
2016-17 
Forecast 

Expenditure on ‘Special Orders’ 
£m’s 

0.3 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.8 

 
 

 The service is working closely with health through the BACES Board to put in place 
plans to reduce expenditure where possible.  These include reviewing the equipment 
provided and a panel has been introduced from October 2016 to review both Council 
and NHS special order requests.  
 

 The service is also looking into the possibility of appropriate items being funded from 
the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) capital budget to reduce pressure on the revenue 
budget.  

 
 
5.1.1.7 Non-Residential Income 
 

 The service is forecast to under-achieve the £6.4m net income budget by £0.8m,   
due to £0.7m of unachieved savings and a £0.1m recurrent pressure due to 
reductions in the numbers of clients charged. 
 

 The new charging policy has been approved, however the £0.5m saving shortfall is 
due to the extended consultation period and time taken to implement the changes. 

 

 There is a further £0.2m saving relating to reviewing charging arrangement for 
Mental Health clients which is forecast to be unachieved at Qtr 3.  However it is 
anticipated that this position will improve as MH clients are continuing to be reviewed 
and will make a contribution following a financial assessment.   

 
 
5.1.1.8  No Recourse to Public Funds 
 

 The service is forecast to overspend the £0.8m net expenditure budget by £0.2m due 
to increased numbers of families seeking support.  

 
5.1.1.9  Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 
 

 The service is forecast to overspend the £0.2m net expenditure budget by £0.3m.  
This overspend is due to the costs of the service carrying out increased assessments 
and also the costs associated with the medical assessments carried out by doctors.  
Activity data to 31st December 2016 shows an increase in Best Interest Assessments 
carried out compared to 2015-16 (+229 to 651 BIA Assessments) and increased 
Mental Health Assessments (+314 to 765).  

 

Page 14



15 
 

5.1.1.10  Compensating Underspends 

 There are compensating underspends of £2.2m across the department of which 
£0.6m relates to staffing as management control costs through vacancies, £0.6m 
saving from a number of commissioned contracts, £0.3m increased client income to 
in-house services as more long stay beds are utilised and £0.7m of non-recurrent 
funding has also been applied.  

 

 All other Adult Services are materially forecast to balance. 

5.1.1.11 Mitigating Actions 

In order to mitigate the financial pressures the following actions are being taken: 
 The Adult and Community Services Management Team when reviewing monthly 

expenditure will actively review  the number of and outcome of  individual care 
packages to ensure that people are getting the most appropriate care to which  they 
are entitled to;  

 The current way of working will be strengthened in line with good practice, including 
assessment, that will proactively build on individuals strengths and assets and 
transferring activity to local community groups where it makes sense to do so. The 
Management Team will also be working with front line staff to support further change 
in the culture in the community social work practices; this will include workforce 
development.   

 Work will continue to be undertaken, in partnership with health colleagues, to 
integrate health and social care services in line with the Sustainability and 
Transformation plan so that the demand for social care and health services is 
controlled and resources are used to support people to go home first, promotes 
independence for people and support their carers. 

 Individual contracts with providers are being renegotiated on the basis of this of this 
strategy to promote choice and independence in a bid to reduce the cost of the 
packages of care and the costs of contracts.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



16 
 

5.1.2  Health and Wellbeing -  Public Health  
 
The department is forecast to underspend the £1.1m net expenditure budget (£46.1m gross 
budget) by £0.2m and deliver the £1.4m savings as planned. 
 

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Public Health Leadership 0.9 1.6 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 1.6 0.7

Information & Intelligence 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0

Nutrition, Obesity & Phsical Activity 2.3 2.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3 2.3 0.0

Drugs Misuse 12.2 12.0 -0.2 0.7 0.7 0.0 11.5 11.2 -0.2

Alcohol Misuse 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0

Tobacco 1.1 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 1.1 0.0

Dental Public Health 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.0

Children 5-19 3.5 3.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.5 3.5 0.0

Health Checks 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0

Sexual Health 4.7 4.6 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 4.6 -0.1

Emergency Preparedness 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Premises becthe respons 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0

Running Costs 1.3 1.1 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.1 -0.2

Health Protection 1.7 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 1.7 0.0

Wider Determination 4.9 4.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.9 4.8 0.0

Children's Service (0-5 Year Olds) 10.7 10.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.7 10.7 0.0

Public Health Grant Funding 0.0 0.0 0.0 44.0 44.0 0.0 -44.0 -44.0 0.0

Environmental Health Management 0.5 0.4 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 -0.1

Air Quality 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Environmental Health & Transport 0.4 0.2 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.0 -0.1

Total 46.1 45.9 -0.2 45.0 45.0 0.0 1.1 0.9 -0.2

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 

 The in year savings of £1.4m which have been achieved are split between a 
reduction in funding from the Department of Health (DoH) totalling £1m and Council 
approved savings of £0.4m.   
 

 The forecasted saving of £0.2m is within the Environmental Health service and 
largely attributable to vacancy management and running costs.  
 

 The Public Health grant conditions allow for underspends to be carried over into the 
next financial year as part of a ring fenced Public Health Reserve.  As at the end of 
December 2016, it is forecast that a minimum of £0.4m would transfer to the Public 
Health Reserve to continue the Self Care project and Health Improvement work. The 
planned movement to reserves has been incorporated into the forecast. 
 

 As reported in Quarter 2, the total annual funding from the Department of Health is 
expected to reduce from £44m to £40.7m in 2020-21 and Public Health continue to 
plan for the reductions. 
 

 Notable Service Transformations that are currently in progress include a new 
recovery focused substance misuse service which is out to tender, and a review and 
redesign of HIV support services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



17 
 

5.2  Children’s Services  
 

 Children Services are forecast to overspend the £80.9m net expenditure budget 

(£545.5m Gross budget) by £2.9m.  The forecast overspend is mainly within Looked 

After Children Purchased Placement and Fees and Allowances paid for other 

Children requiring support as outlined below.  The forecast overspend is inclusive of 

a £1.8m shortfall in the £3.7m of budgeted savings for 2016-17 as outlined in section 

4.2 above. 

 
Gross expenditure 

 
Income 

 
Net expenditure 

Service Name 
Budget 

£m 
Forecast 

£m 
Variance 

£m 
 

Budget 
£m 

Forecast 
£m 

Variance 
£m 

 

Budget 
£m 

Forecast 
£m 

Variance 
£m 

Directors Office 0.3 0.3 0.0 
 

0.0 0.0 0.0 
 

0.3 0.3 0.0 

Schools 371.5 371.6 0.0 
 

380.5 380.5 0.0 
 

-8.9 -8.9 0.0 

Children's Specialist Services 58.7 62.6 3.9 
 

3.9 4.3 -0.4 
 

54.8 58.3 3.5 

Performance, Commissioning 3.6 3.7 0.0 
 

0.3 0.3 0.0 
 

3.3 3.4 0.0 

Education, Employment & Skills 111.3 110.9 -0.4 
 

79.9 80.1 -0.3 
 

31.4 30.8 -0.7 

Total 545.5 549.0 3.5 
 

464.6 465.2 -0.6 
 

80.9 83.8 2.9 

 

5.2.1   Children Social Care Service 

 Children’s Social Care is forecast to overspend the £54.8m net expenditure budget 
by £3.5m. The overspend is largely attributable to: 

 Increases in the overall numbers of Looked after Children impacting on the 
cost of Purchased Placements (£1.2m) and Fees and Allowances (£1.3m). 

 The consequent non achievement of a budget saving plan to reduce the 
number of Looked after Children (£0.8m). 

 The underachievement of a £0.6m budget savings plan to reduce the 
remaining Looked after Children in typically more expensive external 
purchased placements to in house care, as numbers are increasing. 
 

 The table below shows the increases in the number of Children receiving support. 

Type of Placement 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15     2015-16 

2016-17 

(Qtr3) 

Placed with Parents 90 82 84 86 112 

Placed for Adoption 39 53 63 38 26 

Friends and Families 201 189 218 206 235 

Foster Parents 386 383 349 365 373 

Fostering Agencies (Ext) 39 37 32 32 38 

Residential Care 60 70 68 63 55 

Residential Care (Ext) 40 41 46 50 54 

Other  * 34 32 37 34 33 

Total Looked After Children 889 886 897 874 926 

Residence Orders 78 81 65 69 61 

Adoption Orders 213 224 270 271 259 

Special Guardianship Orders  122 157 240 277 296 

Total Chd in Permanent Arrangement 413 462 575 617 616 

Total Children Receiving Support 1,302 1,348 1,472 1,491 1,542 

Page 17



18 
 

5.2.1.1  Looked After Children – Purchased Placements 
 

 Purchased Placements are forecast to overspend the £6.8m net expenditure budget 
by £1.2m. 
 

 A Purchased Placement is an independent fostering placement, an external 
residential placement, a leaving care placement, or secure residential provision.  

 

 There are several issues contributing to the pressure on purchasing external 
placements: 

 A shortage of in house options including in-house foster carers; appropriate 
vacancies within in-house residential units; lack of in-house leaving care 
provision and no local secure provision. 

 An increase in the number of teenagers requiring placements and the reduction 
in the number of very young children being accommodated has led to a mismatch 
with current in-house foster carer approval level, skills and/or experience. 

 Some risks attract a higher cost package of care (e.g. Child Sexual Exploitation 
(CSE), Children going missing, violent aggressive behaviour and self harm 
amongst others. 

 

 The table below outlines that some headway is being made in reducing costs, but the 
reduction is not sufficient to balance the budget. It should be noted that since 2013-
14 the gross cost of Purchased Placements has increased by 27%. 

  2013-14  2014-15  2015-16 
2016-17 
Forecast 

Gross Costs £000s 6,686 6,320 9,150 8,627 

Income £000s (104) - (592) (600) 

Net Costs £000s 6,582 6,320 8,558 8,027 

Fostercare Purchased Nights  16,775 12,941 12,320 13,673 

Secure Residential Care Nights 443 289 770 1,100 

Residential Nights Purchased 14,125 13,156 17,829 16,548 

Leaving Care Supported Nights 1,641 3,204 3,899 2,183 

Total  32,984 29,590 34,818 33,504 

Cost per Purchased Fostercare Week £s 813 792 791 811 

Cost per Secure Residential Week £s 4,215 5,152 3,381 4,002 

Cost per Purchased Residential Care Week £s 2,037 2,226 2,421 2,457 

Cost per Leaving Care Supported Week £s 827 1,003 1,076 1,286 

 
 
5.2.1.2  Fees and Allowances 
 

 The Fees and Allowances budgets of £16.7m for Looked After Children and Children 
in Permanent Arrangements are also anticipated to overspend by £1.3m as follows 
due to increasing demand. 
- Special Guardians Allowances  £0.4m 
- Adoption Allowances £0.4m 
- Fostering £0.2m 
- Friends & Family £0.3m 

 

 The forecast overspends on Looked after Children and Children Receiving Support 
are partly offset by forecast underspends on legal/court cost budgets £0.3m, Children 
Shared Care services £0.2m, Youth Offending/Family support services £0.4m, Early 
Help services £0.2m and non employee budgets of £0.2m. 

Page 18



19 
 

 
 

 It should also be noted that Bradford also has a low number of Looked After Children 
compared to other authorities as shown in the table below, and consequently has a 
relatively low budget.  
 

Local Authority No of looked after Children per 10,000 

children 0 to 17 years 

Bradford 63 

Calderdale 70 

Kirklees 63 

Leeds 78 

Wakefield 72 

Blackburn 83 

Knowsley 95 

Oldham 68 

Rochdale 104 

Manchester 113 

Blackpool 158 

 

 In addition to the forecast overspends on Looked After Children and Children 
Receiving Support outlined above, there is also pressure on the social work team 
budgets of £0.7m and a £0.2m pressure on in-house residential/respite home 
provision.  

 

5.2.1.3  Mitigating Actions 

Social Care Services 

 

The overspend in Children’s Social Care services is underpinned by a 9% increase in 
children coming into care.  This rise is 23% nationally. Many of those newly arrived into 
Bradford are coming into the system at acute and specialist levels.  CSE reporting levels 
have also been high. There is also pressure regionally and nationally around purchased 
placement providers as there is a shortage of placements contributing to significant price 
increases in the last year.   
 

 Children’s services plan to mitigate the overspend on Purchased Placements and 
Allowances by reviewing the care plans of all young people in Purchased Placements 
who can return internally or to an Independent Foster Agency placement.  This 
process has started and a number of children now have plans to return home.    

 Three meetings have taken place with Independent Fostering Agencies exploring the 
possibility of developing a partnership around Bradford children to increase 
opportunities for young people moving from external residential placements to 
fostering.  The allowances paper was approved by the Executive in January 2017 to 
achieve the savings within two years.    

 Work is on going in relation to recruiting further Foster Carers for Bradford.  Further 
plans have been put in place to reduce agency spending through a review of Social 
Work numbers which has now taken place.    

 A detailed review of budgets and teams has taken place and challenge has been put 
in place where spending exceeds budgets. 

Page 19



20 
 

 The Early Help/single point of contact strategy is currently being developed which will 
work across the district to support children and families.  

 The service has been successful in securing £1.6m from the Department for 
Education’s Social Care Innovation Programme. Bradford wants to adopt the ‘No 
Wrong Door’ care approach initiated by North Yorkshire. It has also invested in Signs 
of Safety which is a strength based approach to assessing and working with families.  
There may be further opportunities to transform services to improve outcomes for our 
children and young people and deliver increased efficiencies across regional 
footprints.  

 
5.2.2   Performance Commissioning and Development   

 Performance Commissioning and Development are forecast to overspend the £3.3m 
net expenditure budget by £0.1m. 

 The main pressure is £0.1m overspend on the Bradford Children’s Safeguarding 
Board staffing budget and a £0.2m staffing overspend on the administration team 
budget. 

 The pressure is offset by a favourable variance of £0.2m on the Commissioning 
Team budgets.   
 

 The service has restructured the admin function across social care and child 
protection which will address the £0.2m overspend from 2017-18. The service is also 
looking at addressing the £0.1m overspend on the Bradford Children Safeguarding 
Board budgets including the levels of contribution from partners.  
 

5.2.3   Education, Employment and Skills 

 Education, Employment and Skills are forecast to underspend the £31.5m net 
expenditure budget by £0.7m. This is due to a £0.8m underspend from staffing 
vacancies, partly offset by overspends on the Travel Assistance budget of £0.1m. 

 
 

 

 

Page 20



21 
 

5.3 Environment and Sport  

 Environment and Sport is forecast to underspend the £46m net expenditure budget, 
(£91.2m gross budget) by £0.1m and achieve the £3.5m of budget savings. However, 
within this there are compensating over and under achievements of savings totalling 
£0.3m.  

 

Service Name Budget Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance Budget Forecast Variance

Fleet & Transport Services 12.7 12.4 -0.2 13.1 13.3 -0.2 -0.4 -0.9 -0.4

Waste Collection & Disposal 29.0 29.2 0.2 6.1 6.1 -0.1 22.9 23.0 0.1

Neighbourhoods & Street Scene 18.6 18.3 -0.2 5.9 6.2 -0.4 12.7 12.1 -0.6

Sports & Culture Services 31.0 32.5 1.5 20.1 20.8 -0.7 10.9 11.7 0.8

Total 91.2 92.4 1.2 45.1 46.5 -1.3 46.0 46.0 -0.1

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 

 The forecasted underspend of £0.1m is however inclusive of a forecast overspend 
within Sports Facilities and Waste Disposal of £0.8m and £0.9m respectively.  The 
total overspend of £1.7m has been offset by underspends in Fleet and Transport 
Services, Domestic Recycling, Green and Trade Waste, bus lane fines and 
Uniformed services.  

 
5.3.1   Waste Services 
 

 Waste Services as a whole are forecast to overspend the £22.9m net expenditure 
budget (£29m gross budget) by £0.1m; the £0.9m Waste Disposal overspend is 
being offset by a £0.8m underspend in Waste Collection services (Domestic, 
Recycling, Garden and Trade).  The £1.3m planned savings have been achieved 
which includes the delivery of the Waste Minimisation project, the introduction of 
charges for Garden Waste and increased revenues from Trade Waste. 

 
 

 Waste Disposal is forecast to over spend the £15.2m net budget by £0.9m, mainly 
due to disposal costs exceeding the budgeted amount by £0.4m (currently 
forecasting to dispose of 148,000 tonnes residual waste (landfill or alternative 
treatment) vs budgeted tonnes of 145,000) and lower than budgeted income from 
paper sales due to contamination (under achieved by £0.3m).  Future budgetary 
tonnage planning needs to be revised in light of the new build developments. This is 
highlighted by, over the past 10 years there has been an increase of new build 
properties of 1% per annum. During the last year 1,474 new properties have been 
built, each property generates approximately 1 Tonne of waste per annum. Future 
tonnage forecasting needs to take into account the number of expected new builds 
as this is expected to increase significantly over the coming years.  
 

 There has been a £0.1m overspend on Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) costs; a 
£0.1m Better use of Budget carry forward was approved to fund staff and equipment, 
but other costs, such as essential health & safety works have resulted in the over 
spend. Additionally, there has been a further overspend of £0.1m in Waste Disposal, 
comprising of various relatively small amounts on employees, fleet and premises 
costs. 

 

 Recycling is forecast to underspend the £2.5m net budget by £0.6m, as a result of 
lower than budgeted expenditure on transport costs by £0.3m and £0.1m on 
employees. Income from Garden Waste collections has exceeded budget by £0.2m. 

 

 The Domestic Refuse Collections service is forecast to underspend the £5.1m net 
budget by £0.1m, largely due to savings on employee costs, as recruitment is 

Page 21



22 
 

currently on hold pending a reconfiguration of rounds to accommodate alternate 
weekly collections in 2017-18. 

. 

 Income from Trade Waste is forecast to exceed budget by £0.1m.  
 

 Waste Disposal 

At Qtr 3 
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3 
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

Gross Costs £000s 12,646 13,092 13,420 17,429 

Income £000s (1,087) (860) (986) (1,469) 

Direct Net Costs £000s 11,559 12,232 12,434 15,960 

Waste Collected as Recycling (Tonnes) 49,791 51,945 54,285 64,839 

Waste to Landfill or Alternative Treatment (Tonnes) Excl Trade Waste 109,927 110,969 107,988 148,380 

Total before Trade Waste 159,718 162,914 162,273 213,219 

Trade Waste tonnes 000s (funded by Trade Waste) 14,736 15,092 14,945 20,106 

Total Municipal Waste Disposed of (Tonnes) 174,454 178,006 177,218 233,328 

Gross cost per tonne £72.5 £73.5 £75.7 £74.7 

Net cost per tonne  £66.3 £68.7 £70.2 £68.4 

N.B. Q3 gross costs higher in 16/17 than 15/16 partly due to the inclusion of £0.1m waste contract procurement costs, 

funded from reserves. There are also £0.2m costs to fund the new MRF. 

 As a move to remedy the problem of contaminated paper batches, the service has 

re-introduced a Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) at Bowling Back Lane, which has 

been operational since October. An upturn in income is expected during the later part 

of the year and income received for October & November has already shown an 

improvement on amounts received in previous months. These recent improvements 

have been reflected in the forecast. 

The MRF will also play a pivotal role in achieving next year’s savings, as co-mingled 

recyclates will require separation before being sold on to contractors (paper is 

currently collected separately from other dry recyclates, but with the introduction of 

alternate weekly collection (AWC), all recycling materials will be deposited in one 

bin). 

 To reduce disposal tonnages, the service is continuing with the Waste Minimisation 

Programme, including delivery of recycling bins, enforcement of the bin policy (closed 

lid, no side waste, etc.) and is also planning the move to alternate weekly collections 

, due to commence in April 2017.   

 Tonnage data collected from the Wyke AWC trial indicates that residual kerbside 

refuse decreased when compared to weekly collections figures, so the early signs 

are encouraging and suggest that fortnightly collections will have the desired effect of 

reducing waste disposal. 

 Kerbside residual tonnages have decreased by 4,900 tonnes against Qtr 3 for 15/16 
resulting in reduced costs of £422k (£86 per tonne) and kerbside recycling has 
increased by 1,650 tonnes against Qtr 3 for 15/16 resulting in additional income of 
£66k (£40 per tonne). Kerbside recycling tonnes are at their highest ever levels and 
kerbside residual waste is reducing showing a very positive direction of travel in line 
with the Waste Minimisation Strategy. Kerbside garden waste tonnes collected have 
also reduced from 10,200 to 7,600 at Qtr 3, following the introduction of charging 
(with increases at household waste sites), and trade waste tonnes / contracts are 
performing well. 

 
 

Page 22



23 
 

Waste Collection At Qtr 3 14/15 At Qtr 3 15/16 At Qtr 3 16/17 Outturn 15/16 

Kerbside Waste Tonnes collected 000s 99.2 100.6 95.8 129.7 

Kerbside Recycling Tonnes collected 000s 12.9 13.3 14.9 18 

Garden Waste Tonnes collected 000s 9.0 10.2 7.6 10.9 

Trade Waste Tonnes collected 000s 14.7 15.1 14.9 20.1 

 
 
5.3.2   Sports and Culture  
 
5.3.2.1  Sports & Leisure 
 
 

 Sports & Culture are forecast to overspend the £10.9m net expenditure budget 
(£31.0m gross budget) by £0.8m. Of the £0.8m planned savings £0.6m are on target 
to be achieved with compensating savings being identified for the majority of areas.  

 

 Employee costs within Sports Facilities are currently forecast to over spend the 
£4.3m budget by £0.6m. When compared to the 2015-16 outturn figure of £4.8m this 
is a £0.1m increase year on year. 

 

 Sports Facilities income is currently forecast to outturn at £4.4m (as 2015-16), an 
underachievement of £0.1m.  

 

 Despite the closure of Nab Wood and the flooding at Baildon Recreation Centre it is 
anticipated that attendances will outturn at a similar level to that of 2015-16 

 
 

Sports Facilities  
At Qtr 3 
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3  
16/17 Outturn 15/16 

Gross Costs £000s 4,478 4,432 4,853 7,759 

Income £000s (2,952) (3,009) (3,068) (4,555)* 

Direct Net Costs £000s 1,527 1,422 1,785 3,204 

Total Attendances 000s 1,382 1,327 1,340 1,822 

Gross Managed Cost per attendance £3.24 £3.34 £3.62 £4.26 

Income Per Attendance  -£2.14 -£2.27 -£2.29 -£2.50 

Direct Net Costs per attendance £1.10 £1.07 £1.33 £1.76 

* Includes £(183)k relating to Tour De France     

 

 Bingley Music Live did not achieve anticipated levels of income and have reported a 
£0.2m under achievement of income. This is based on reduced levels of ticket & bar 
sales due to a decrease in attendance of 27% from 37,000 in 2015-16 to 27,000 in 
2016-17. Advance ticket sales were down by £77k, and Walk up ticket sales were 
also affected by the weather. This is now an established event and could attract 
interest from a private sector partner in order to reduce financial risk and attract 
specialist skills to improve the event in future years. A review of the ticket price may 
also help reduce the net cost of the event although a higher ticket price could also 
reduce the volume of tickets sold. 
 

 Transportation costs, equipment running costs & maintenance & prudential 
borrowing, within Parks & Landscapes, are forecasting a combined underspend of 
£0.2m against a budget of £1.1m. This has been achieved through a combination of 
reduced activity, planned replacement of equipment and service efficiencies, £0.1m. 
In addition the knock on effect of cash purchases made in 2015-16 reduced the 
requirement for prudential borrowing funding in 2016-17 by £0.1m. 

Page 23



24 
 

 
5.3.2.2  Culture  

 

 Culture Services are forecast to overspend the £5.9m net expenditure budget 
(£16.8m gross) by £0.1m, with overspends in Market & Libraries being offset by 
efficiencies in non staff costs in Tourism. The £5.9m budget includes £0.5m 
transitional funding to facilitate the delivery of savings during 2016-17. 

 As previously noted a strategic review of the function of tourism services in the 
Bradford District is underway. The shape of the future service will be expected to 
follow from the conclusions of the review but as its conclusions are not expected until 
late autumn. The Tourism service is planning for the reduction in transitional funding 
of £0.2m which will take place in 2017-18. 

 Central to Culture Service planning for this year and beyond is the development of a 
Culture Company; £0.2m is set aside for funding the development although this also 
includes planning for Sport and Leisure assets.  Part of the Culture reserve will 
further support the transitional planning for Tourism Services.  

 Theatres expect to balance the budget overall despite a now longer than expected 

closure of St George’s Hall while the part Heritage Lottery Funded restoration takes 

place. Ticket sales at the Alhambra are higher than at the same time last year due to 

the success of shows such as Wicked in this year’s programme at the Alhambra. 

THEATRES 
At Qtr 3  
14/15 

At Qtr 3  
15/16 

At Qtr 3 
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

     Alhambra Ticket Sales 000s 218 199 249 269 

     St Georges Hall Ticket Sales 000s 62 53 0 77 

Total Ticket Sales 000s 280 252 249 350 

 

 Libraries and Museums are paying very close attention to workforce planning in order 

to manage costs down and deliver in year savings and prepare for further savings in 

2017-18 which were agreed in February 2016. 

 The combined net budget of £5.2m for the services is forecast to overspend by 

£0.1m, as a result of Libraries rental expenditure exceeding budget and under 

achievements on income. Due to the changing nature of the Libraries’ service, 

income profiles are changing, as more people renew on-line, so avoiding fines, and 

fewer people rent videos & DVDs. 2017-18 income budgets will be realigned to 

reflect these changes.  

 Despite the financial limitations Museums and Galleries have been able to present a 

programme of art works including Hockney and the Royal Collection, and visitor 

numbers are similar to last year. 

Visitor No's (000s) Libraries & Museums 
At Qtr 3  
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3 
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

     Libraries 1,132 1,074 999 1,394 

     Museums 209 167 164 213 

Total 1,341 1,241 1,163 1,607 

 

Page 24



25 
 

 The Markets Service is currently forecast to under achieve the £1.3m net income 

budget by £0.1m due mainly to increases in vacant market stalls at the indoor and 

outdoor venues. This has meant not only a loss of income but in the case of our retail 

indoor markets increased expenditure in terms of increased Business Rates 

liabilities. 

 

MARKETS 
At Qtr 3  
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3 
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

Gross Costs £000s 864 969 853 1,799 

Income £000s (2,378) (2,366) (2,321) (2,838) 

Direct Net Costs £000s (1,514) (1,396) (1,469) (1,039) 

    
  

Indoor Units Occupied 534 510 495 522 

Wholesale Unit Occupied 19 21 21 20 

Outdoor Units Occupied 99 94 86 96 

Total Units Occupied 652 625 602 638 

 
 
 5.3.3 Neighbourhoods and Customer Services  
 

 Neighbourhoods and Customer Services are forecast to underspend the £12.7m net 
expenditure budget (£18.6m gross budget) by £0.6m. Of the £1.1m planned savings 
£1.0m are on target to be achieved with compensating savings being identified for 
the other £0.1m. 

 

 The under spend of £0.6m is being driven by higher than expected revenues and 
staff vacancies within Uniformed Services and Customer Services. 

 

 The under spend within Uniformed Services is due to vacancies within the Wardens 
Service at the beginning of the year (the Wardens Service is now fully staffed) and  
higher than budgeted revenues from Parking Services linked to bus lane & parking 
fines and ticket income. Although forecast revenues are higher than expected, they 
could be impacted further by increased city centre competition. 

 

Uniformed Services

Q3 YTD 

14/15

Q3 YTD 

15/16

Q3 YTD 

16/17

Outturn 

15/16

   9301  Tickets 1,267 1,247 1,340 1,948

   9303  Contract Parking 135 141 143 142

   9345  Parking Fines & Fixed Penalty Fines 2,225 2,705 2,382 3,700

   Other Income 39 24 75 71

TOTAL Income 3,666 4,117 3,940 5,861  
 
5.3.4   Fleet & Transport Services 

 

 Fleet & Transport services are forecast to over achieve the £0.4m net income budget 
(£12.7m gross budget) by £0.4m. This mainly comprises of a £0.2m underspend 
within Fleet services due to staff savings, a £0.1m savings within SEN Children and 
Adults’ transport and a £0.1m over achievement of income in land charges due to 
increased search requests. 

 

 One off investment of £0.3m was given to the Travel training Unit in 2016-17 as part 
of an ‘Invest to save’ initiative. 9.5 FTE’s have been recruited which has had a 
positive effect on the number of independent travellers. 

Page 25



26 
 

5.4  Regeneration 
 

 The Department of Regeneration is forecast to underspend the £39.1m net 

expenditure budget (£85.2m gross budget) by £0.3m.  £3.6m of the £4.3m budgeted 

savings are currently forecast to be delivered with forecast underachievement of 

£0.6m of savings in Planning, Transportation and Highways.   

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Strategic Director Office 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.0

Economy and Development Services 10.8 10.5 -0.3 1.6 1.7 -0.1 9.2 8.8 -0.4

Estates and Property Services 53.7 51.3 -2.4 38.3 36.7 1.5 15.5 14.6 -0.8

Planning Transport & Highways 20.5 21.1 0.6 6.3 6.0 0.3 14.1 15.0 0.9

Total 85.2 83.2 -2.1 46.2 44.4 1.7 39.1 38.7 -0.3

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 

5.4.1 Economy and Development Services 

 Economy and Development Services are forecast to underspend the £9.2m budget 

by £0.4m, which compares to a reported underspend of £0.1m at Qtr2. Underspends 

have been picked up since mid-year in Economic Development (ED) although this is 

not unexpected given the nature and scale of the investment projects undertaken.  

 Underspends in ED are found within Salaries and within ‘services’ budget headings. 

Less than planned expenditure assists the service to re-position itself in anticipation 

of the loss of transitional funding from April 2017. Having said that, ED continue to 

progress major District investment projects for example, making progress with the 

regional partnership established in the West Yorkshire Combined Authority in 

supporting the M62 Corridor Enterprise Zone and bringing sites such as One City 

Park and the Odeon closer to development.  

 A range of other projects remain work in progress. These include the local 

‘Ad:venture Programme’, Digital Enterprise Fund and Resource Efficiency Fund 

which have been approved at Regional levels, however, detailed negotiations on all 

aspects between partners is on-going. The programme is budgeted for 2016-17 but 

inevitably will now be deferred into 2017-18 and associated funding of £0.4m will 

need to be carried forward to match plans. Similarly, smaller scale projects for 

achieving better city centre business outcomes (£0.1m), Community Enterprise 

commissioning (£0.2m) and city centre ‘animations’ (£0.1m) are all at different 

planning stages and will also likely require carried forward funding in addition to the 

current reported underspend.  

 A material change is reported since Qtr 2 for Housing Strategy and Access. Within 

homelessness services there are clear indications of demand  this growing and as a 

consequence costs amounting of £40k above that budgeted for has been reported. 

Overall however costs are being contained against other broader expenditure 

headings, Housing Operations, for example, is still on course to underspend the £1m 

net expenditure budget by £0.1m due to additional fees being collected from the 

delivery of Disabled Facilities Grants. Demand for adaptations to homes to allow for 

independent living remains high  

Page 26



27 
 

 The Education Client Services Team will deliver a mainly balanced budget in 

delivering the Council strategic Education investment priorities. These include school 

place planning, school’s capital investment, school security and crossings. A small 

underspend of £50k will be the result of security and pending litigation expenditure 

being deferred to 2017-18  

5.4.2    Estates and Property Services 

 Estates and Property Services are forecast to underspend the £15.5m budget by 

£0.8m (£0.6m at Qtr 2). The improvement is due in part to ISG making operational 

efficiencies to move from a likely overspend to break even position. Estates staffing 

costs have continued to reduce. Additionally School Catering is reporting an 

improved trading position, £0.5m up, and one off reductions, £0.2m, have been 

achieved in the cost base for the Central Admin Estate in 2016-17. Costs associated 

with the termination of the Future House lease are being funded from the reserve 

previously set aside, depending on the councils overall position it would be proposed 

to use the CAE underspend to top up this reserve.    

 The Energy Unit forecasts to largely balance the £5m budget and deliver £0.7m in 

allocated savings despite contending with gas price rises in 2016. The unit’s 

efficiency work along with buildings vacated through the Property Programme have 

helped reduce energy consumption and mitigate the financial impacts of cost rises. 

The probable outturn balance is subject currently to further validation and if as 

expected there is a significant unspent balance at the year end (estimated to fall 

within a range of £0.2m-£0.7m), the service will submit plans to maintain progress 

with favourable billing performance and put to Executive further invest to save 

proposals to reduce energy costs of the Council’s property estate.  

Energy Usage KwH ms 
At Qtr 3 

14/15 
At Qtr 3 

15/16 
At Qtr 3 

16/17 
Outturn 

15/16 

Electric  (Non Street Lighting)  15.5 12.6 13.7 21.7 

Gas  30.2 31.2 28.1 45.4 

Total Gas & electric  45.7 43.8 41.8 67.2 

 

 Additional benefits in water cost savings from better billing work, more precision and 

shutting down unused supplies have further assisted the bottom line. 

 School catering is reporting an improved position due to a rise in productivity and 

operational efficiency. The overall volume of school meals has still increased year on 

year, despite some primary schools ending their relationship with the schools meals 

service in 2016-17. This increase is additional to that initially attributable to the 

Universal Infant Free School Meals and is as a result of more parents opting for 

school meals. 

 

 

 

Page 27



28 
 

School Catering 
At Qtr 3 
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3 
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

Number of Meals 000s 4,215 4,577 4,602 6,476 

Other activity - e.g Breakfast clubs meals 000s 107 123 125 179 

Number of Primary Schools Catered For 149 149 147 149 

Number of Secondary Schools Catered For 3 5 5 5 

Take up of school lunches 64% 68% 68% 69% 
Primary school children’s satisfaction with school 
meals 74% 72% 72% 72% 

 

 Estates management are forecast to balance the £1.8m net rent account this year. 

Additional one off income has been secured through temporary occupiers of Shipley 

Town Hall and Future House. Staff cost savings resulting from vacancies assist the 

bottom line but further savings are expected from a restructure that is in progress.   

The new income will provide a boost to the account of between £0.2m and £0.4m.  

 Subject to the overall financial outturn, the service faces ‘in year’ and future 

challenges to enhance control over the rent account and to meet additional costs 

required to undertake a wide ranging review of commercial and non commercial 

leases in 2017-18. Positively, the additional undertaking in property related work is 

associated with transitioning to a smaller cheaper estate. 

 The Councils operational estate continues to reduce in size, and improve in quality 

as reported previously due largely to the Property Programme.  

Backlog Maintenance 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Operational £ms     77.7      68.4      55.2      50.1      50.3      48.7  

Non Operational £ms     10.8      10.8      10.8        9.2        4.6        7.4  

Total Backlog Maintenance £ms     88.4      79.1      66.0      59.3      54.9      56.1  

Of which Priority 1 £ms     61.8      53.8      43.3      31.1      27.8      26.2  
       

Size of Estate        

Operational GIAm2 000s      285       268       252       248       248       223  

Non-Operational GIAm2 000s        26         26         26         26         23         37  

Total £m2   £000s      312       295       278       274       271       260  

 

 Within the central admin estate the vacating of Future House & Jacobs Well offices in 

year and the increasing shift to flexible working in line with the Property Programme 

Strategy,  has seen a significant improvement in occupancy levels and use of space.  

 
At Qtr 3 14/15 At Qtr 3 15/16 At Qtr 3 16/17 

Occupants  3,509 3,468 3,367 

Workstations 3,446 3,419 2,802 

% OCCUPANCY (1:1) 102% 101% 120% 

Gross Internal Area m2 68,312 67,557 50,986 

Backlog Maintenance £000s 9,632 8,281 7,496 

 

Page 28



29 
 

 HMRC’s occupancy of Future House for 6 months and the confirmation of the 

handover of Future House as at April 2017 have provided 1 off income/savings in 

addition to the anticipated reduction in accommodation costs for 2016-17 onwards. 

 Industrial Services Group’s (ISG) operations from the sheltered employment 

workshop (30+ FTE’s are people with declared disabilities) are striving hard to 

maintain a balanced budget. While £0.2m of budgeted sales for the festive light 

operation will comfortably hit target, sales of windows and doors are subject to 

considerable uncertainty now that ISG is no longer a guaranteed supplier to In-

communities.  

 ISG will make full use this year of one off subsidy of £0.4m and will likely achieve a 

balanced result if sales including subsidy reach £1.3m. ISG will shortly restructure to 

match current workloads. As a priority ISG will make sufficient reductions to bring the 

service back into line with base budget and then in subsequent years will bring the 

service back to a nil operating budget. i.e. break even. Trading conditions are 

difficult, although recent new order leads may assist the bottom line very favourably; 

vacancies in sales, production and transactional roles are a concern for the 

organisations stability 

5.4.3   Planning, Transportation and Highways  

 The service is forecast to overspend the £14.1m net expenditure budget by £0.9m 

(Qtr2, £0.6m). The delivery of budgeted savings of £1.8m is proving challenging, 

where £0.6m has yet to be realised. The service aims to balance through cost 

efficient practice and strict vacancy management. 

 Despite year to year progress in reducing costs and increasing productivity there 

presently remains a £0.3m overspend within Building Control (BC), £0.2m overspend 

in Development Management and a £0.4m pressure in Highways Street Lighting and 

the Highways Delivery Unit (HDU). The pressure in BC relates to challenging legacy 

income targets. In response the service has managed down the pressure year to 

year from £0.5m to £0.3m through reductions in headcount from 41 to 30 (including a 

reduction in 14 senior building surveyors in 2010 to 6 today) and meanwhile ensures 

the statutory trading account has balanced; pressure remains in the cost of statutory 

enforcement, demolitions, dangerous structures, sports grounds and public events.   

 Planning charges have improved slightly compared to last year, as have receipts 

from new charges made to operators who seek clearance for temporary highway 

obstructions which after an extension to targets is expected to balance.  

Development Management (BRRTPD) 
At Qtr 3 
14/15 

At Qtr 3 
15/16 

At Qtr 3  
16/17 

Outturn 
15/16 

Gross Costs £000s 1,706 1,728 1,610 2,511 

Income £000s (1,490) (1,107) (1,313) (2,063) 

Direct Net Costs £000s 217 621 296 448 

    
  

Major Planning applications processed 82 69 64 80 

Minor Planning applications processed 802 713 737 913 

Other Planning applications processed 1,500 1,657 2,011 2,165 

Total 2,440 2,439 2,812 3,158 

 

Page 29



30 
 

 Staffing costs in Development Management remain £0.2m above budget but costs 

are expected to reduce as restructures progress. Spending on the Local Plan is less 

than planned due to interventions in the process by local representatives.  

 An additional £1.6m street lighting capital investment has been recommended by the 

Project Appraisal Group to be added to the existing £0.8m in the Capital Investment 

Plan. This is expected to lead to savings in utility and maintenance costs but on 

current readings of consumption and billings this isn’t yet being realised and so 

spending is £0.3m more than planned for. Price increases known as the ‘capacity 

levy’ is a brake on the ability of the service to make savings. 

 Highways Asset Management and the Highways Delivery Unit (HDU) have managed 

spend on trunk road maintenance downwards by £0.2m to offset legacy cost 

pressures in the HDU. The service aims to maintain favourable service standards, 

evidenced through a Department for Transport Incentive Fund submission.  

 Weather conditions can be a factor in closing the account favourably so there is a 

degree of uncertainty in projections. Mitigating efficiencies will be found from within 

highways operations, leasing vehicles instead of purchase, reducing depot costs, 

productivity improvements and vacancy management.  

 
5.5  Chief Executive  

 

 The Chief Executive’s Office including Policy, Programmes & Change (PPC) is 
forecast to underspend the £4.4m net expenditure budget (£4.5m gross budget) by 
£0.2m and achieve the £0.2m of savings targets. Savings, mainly from staffing costs, 
are spread roughly equally across Political Offices, PAC Affairs & PPC   

 

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Chief Executive Core Office 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0

Political Offices 0.2 0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 -0.1

Public Affairs 1.4 1.3 -0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 1.3 1.2 -0.1

Policy Programme 2.5 2.4 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 2.4 -0.1

Total 4.5 4.3 -0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 4.4 4.1 -0.2

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 
 
5.6  Finance 
 

 The department is forecast to underspend the £21.5m net expenditure budget 
(£198m gross budget) by £1.2m, and deliver £7.2m of savings as planned. 

 

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Director of Finance 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.0

Financial Services 2.6 2.5 -0.1 0.2 0.1 0.0 2.4 2.3 -0.1

Revenues & Benefits 178.3 189.9 11.6 175.0 186.8 -11.8 3.3 3.1 -0.2

Information & Customer Services 15.2 14.5 -0.8 1.4 1.2 0.3 13.8 13.3 -0.5

Commissioning & Procurement 1.9 1.7 -0.2 0.3 0.4 -0.1 1.7 1.4 -0.3

Total 198.4 208.8 10.5 176.9 188.5 -11.6 21.5 20.3 -1.2

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 
 
 

Page 30



31 
 

5.6.1 Revenues & Benefits are forecast to underspend by £0.2m due largely to employee 
underspends. As previously noted this underspend is inclusive of a 2015-16 carried 
forward underspend of £0.1m to complete the URB system migration and 
MyServices ICT work on which  is unlikely to take place this year.  

 

 Benchmarking information indicates that the service is efficient when compared to 
other Councils. Higher Council tax collection cost per dwelling reflects the continuing 
and increasing challenges of collecting from low income families impacting on the net 
income level and consequent cost per dwelling. 

 

Business Rates Collection Bradford 
Cipfa 

Benchmark 

Business Rates - Cost per hereditament per year    £31.11 £50.40 
Council Tax – Cost per Dwelling per year £13.30 £11.24 
Corporate Debt –  Cost per invoice £7.73 £8.05 
Payroll – Bradford Cost per Employee per year £31.51  

 
5.6.2 Information Technology Services (ITS) are forecast to underspend by £0.5m. This 

is an improvement from a breakeven position reported as at Qtr2 due to a 
combination of a review of contracts, subsequent to bring the service “in house” in 
2015-16, and savings on employee costs while the staff has been in transition to a 
new structure.   
 

 Spend on ICT has significantly reduced since the end of the IBM contract in 
September 2015, and the service is on track to deliver planned savings and reduce 
spend to closer to the NABIT (Northern Authorities Benchmarking IT) cost per user 

 
 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Forecast 
2017/18 
planned 

Bradford Gross Cost per user £s 3,404 2,656 2,481 2,243 
Bradford Net Cost per user £s 3,176 2,442 2,164 2,050 
NABIT Benchmark cost per user  1,700    

 
5.6.3 Financial Services are forecast to underspend the £2.4m net expenditure budget by 

£0.1m, and deliver savings as planned. Recently received CIPFA benchmarking 
information shows that the Council spends the lowest  on Financial Services relative 
to other Councils.  
 
 2015/16 

Bradford cost of Fin Services per £000 Gross Revenue Turnover         1.81 

Cipfa Group Average Cost per £000 Gross Revenue Turnover 4.17 

 

 Indicatively if Financial Services in Bradford operated at the same average cost of 
benchmark Councils, it’s total cost of service in 2015-16 would have been £3.3m 
higher at £5.8m rather than the £2.5m that it did spend. 
 

 External Auditors also gave a high rating for sound governance, understanding and 
using reliable financial and performance information and reliable financial planning 
and reporting that supports the Council’s priorities and the maintenance of its 
statutory functions. 

 
5.6.4 Commissioning & Procurement are forecast to underspend by £0.3m, up from 

£0.1m at Qtr 2. Of this £0.1m is on employee costs due to the decision not to fill 
vacant posts pending a service review, £0.1m through the renegotiation of contracts 
and a further £0.1m of 1 off savings from a payments review. 

Page 31



32 
 

5.7  Human Resources 
 

 Human Resources (HR) are forecast to underspend their £6.0m net expenditure by 
£0.4m, after accounting for £1m of budget savings. This improvement from a 
breakeven position as reported at Qtr2 is as a result of both the completion of 
restructures releasing salary savings and a reduction in 3rd party spend.    

 

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

HR Functions 5.0 4.8 -0.2 0.3 0.5 -0.2 4.7 4.3 -0.4

Single Status 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Corporate Projects 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1

Miscellaneous Income 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Traded HR Functions 1.2 1.1 -0.1 1.4 1.4 0.0 -0.3 -0.3 0.0

Administration 1.6 1.6 -0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 1.5 1.5 0.0

Total 7.9 7.7 -0.2 1.9 2.1 -0.2 6.0 5.6 -0.4

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 

 

 The projections also allow for work on Council priority programmes such as New 
Deal & Learner Management System being funded in 2016-17 via prior year 
underspends of £0.2m. 

 
 
5.8       City Solicitor 
 

 The City Solicitor is forecasting an underspend of £0.3m on the £6.2m net budget, in 
line with that reported at Qtr2. This is partly due to operational efficiencies resulting 
from the Registrars move into City Hall, and vacancy control in Legal Services in 
advance of future years savings. 

 
  

Service Name

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

Budget

£m

Forecast

£m

Variance

£m

City Solicitor's Office 0.3 0.2 -0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.1 -0.1

Democratic 5.4 5.3 -0.1 1.9 1.8 0.1 3.5 3.5 0.0

Legal 2.7 2.5 -0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0 2.6 2.3 -0.2

Total 8.4 8.0 -0.4 2.2 2.1 0.1 6.2 5.9 -0.3

Gross expenditure Income Net expenditure

 
 
 
5.9 Non Service Budgets  
 

 The £5.9m of Non service budgets that include payments to Joint Committees with 
other West Yorkshire Local Authorities, External Audit, bank interest and Yorkshire 
Purchasing Organisation dividends amongst others are forecast to   underspend by 
£0.2m due to lower than budgeted External Audit fees (£0.1m) and higher than 
budgeted investment income (£0.1m). 

 
 5.10   Central Budgets & Contingencies 
 

 Budgets held centrally include the revenue costs associated with Capital Investment 
(interest and principal repayment), payment to the West Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive and contingencies amongst others. 
 

 Contained within  Central budgets and contingencies are £4.8m of undelivered 
savings associated with Transport Assistance (£1.8m from 15/16 and £3m in 16/17) 
that are forecast to be mitigated by the use of  contingencies in 2016-17. 

Page 32



33 
 

 

 Other budges are forecast to underspend by   £3.2m  (£1.1m at Qtr 2) as a result of 
lower capital financing costs due to  lower than planned capital spending (see section 
7),offset by the forecast requirement to make provision for future redundancy and 
pension costs. 

 
 
 
6.0 BALANCE SHEET  
 
6.1     Cash Reserves  
 

 At 31st December 2016 unallocated reserves stand at £13.8m.  
 

 The balance continues to be seen as potentially inadequate by both the Director of 
Finance and the Council’s External Auditors given the expected cuts in non protected 
Government Departments spending the future. 

 

 Net movements from reserves have led to a £17.3m reduction in total reserves from 
£167.7m at 1 April 2016 to £150.4m at 31st December 2016 (£116.6m Council and 
£33.8m schools). The £17.3m net releases from reserves include: 

 
o Releases and additions outlined in Qtrs 1 & 2,  
o £565k of further releases in Qtr 3 including; 

 
£300k from the Regional Growth Fund Reserve to fund rates rebates as part 
of the City Centre growth zone, leaving £5.4m in the reserve 

  £14k from the Customer services strategy  
  £15k from the Workforce Development New Deal reserve 

£70k from Grant Reserves to fund spend in line with Grants received  
£166k from the £11.6m Renewals and Replacement reserve that has been 
used to fund an instalment of the  £1m grant for the National Media Museum.  

 
Appendices 1&2 outline Council and schools reserves. 
 
 

 
6.2  School Balances 
 
 The table below shows that School Reserves (including Schools Contingencies) 

position as at 30th of September 2016. Schools do not report their quarter three 
financial position for 2016-17 until the end of January 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



34 
 

 Balance 1
st

 April 
2016 

Balance 31
st

 
March 2017 

Movement 

Nos £000 Nos £000 Nos £000 

Nursery 7 634 7 637 0 (3) 
Primary 137 13,193 113 7,378 24 5,815 
Secondary 13 3,307 7 (1,804) 6 5,111 
Special 6 693 6 222 0 471 
Pupil Referral Units (PRU) 7 1,041 7 384 0 657 
       
Total 170 18,868 140 6,817 30 12,051 
School Contingency  14,091  7,000 0 7,091 
City Learning Centres/Other  844  461 0 83 
Total 170 33,803 170 14,578  19,225 

 

 There have been thirty schools who have converted to Academy Status in 2016-17.  
 

 In setting the 2016-17 Schools budget, The Schools Forum allocated £9.6m balance 
held within School Contingencies.  

 
 
 
7.0 CAPITAL 
 

 The profiled resource position for 2016-17 for the Capital Investment Plan (CIP) stands 
at £80.4m.  This is a reduction of £20.5m from the Qtr 2 monitor position. To the end of 
December there has been spend of £39.9m. A summary position by service is shown in 
the Table below and the detailed Capital Monitor in Appendix 3.  

 

Service 

Budget  
Exec 
 Nov 
2016     

Changes  

Re - 
profiled 
Budget 

for Year 

Profiled 
Budget 

Apr-
Dec 

Actual 
Spend 

to 31 
Dec 

2017-
18 

Budget 

2018-19 
Onwards 

    £'m £'m  £'m £'m £'m £’m £'m 

Health and Wellbeing 1.8 -0.4 1.4 0.9 0.8 15.4 5.2 

Children’s Services 24.1 -3.4 20.7 13.3 13.0 23.4 23.0 

Environment & Sport 20.2 -11.0 9.2 5.0 4.3 15.3 33.4 

Regen – Estates & Property Serv 6.8 0.0 6.8 3.0 2.6 2.3 0.0 

Regen – Economic & Devel Serv 18.7 -1.8 16.9 9.7 10.4 34.4 21.8 

Regen – Plan , Transport &  
Hghwys  

20.9 -0.6 20.3 9.4 8.8 12.3 43.8 

Reserve Sch & Contingencies 8.4 -3.3 5.1 0.0 0.0 9.8 43.5 

All Services 100.9 -20.5 80.4 41.3 39.9 112.9 170.7 

 

 The main reasons for the reduction in the planned spend are;  

 The decision to reduce the scope of the Sports Facilities Investment Programme 
(CS0284), reducing the overall cost from £41m to £28.1m including a reduction of 
£6m in spend in 2016-17.   

 £4.1m of planned spend on the £38.7m Primary Schools Expansion Programme 
(CS0244) has been re-profiled to 2017-18 

 £3.6m of planned spend on the £5.4m St Georges Hall Major Refurbishment has 
been re-profiled into next year. Preparatory and surveying works have been 
completed and a Project Manager has been appointed in line with Heritage Lottery 
Funding grant requirements. 

 £3.3m of Reserves and Contingencies have been re-profiled into future years. 
 

Page 34



35 
 

 
 
7.1 New Capital Schemes 

 

 The 8 November 2016 Executive approved the setting aside of funding of £17m for the 
Bereavement Strategy subject to project appraisal. This has been incorporated under 
Reserve Schemes and Contingencies. 

  
7.2 Capital Resources 
 
 An additional £29.0m in capital grants (predominantly Education related) and 

contributions has been received so far this year and the Council has already achieved 
the target of £3m in non-housing capital receipts. 

 Regarding borrowing, the Council has £25.9m of debt due to mature in March. In order 
to maintain cash balances and to secure the low interest rates currently available, the 
Council has secured £25.9m in new loans. The £1.6m  reduction in annual interest costs 
this will deliver has been factored into existing capital finance budgets. 

 
 
 
 
8.0 Council Tax and Business Rates collection. 
 
8.1 Council Tax  

 

 In 2016-17, the Council will receive its budgeted £159.9m share of Council Tax. The 
Council receives its budgeted share by statute, paid for from a separate account called 
the Collection Fund, with any surplus or deficit compared to the actual amount collected 
carried forward into the following year. Overall there is a forecast surplus of £2m for 
2016-17, which will be used to support next year’s budget.  
 

 At 31 December 2016, the Council had collected £146.2m (75.25%) of the value of 
Council Tax bills marginally higher than the target for this stage of the year. 

 

Council Tax Collection  At Qtr 3 14/15 At Qtr 3 15/16 At Qtr 3 16/17 

Council Tax - Dwellings administered 212,032 213,448 214,828 

BV9 Council Tax collected in year to 3
rd
 qtr£000s 134,100 139,200 146,244 

BV9 % of Council Tax Collected to 3
rd
 qtr 75.35% 75.17% 75.25% 

Council Tax Collection Target at 3
rd
 qtr 76.4% 75.4% 74.9% 

 
 
8.2 Business Rates  

 

 Also by statute the Council will receive its £74.1m budgeted share of Business Rates 
from the Collection Fund in 2016-17 with any difference in the actual amount collected 
carried forward into 2017-18. A deficit of £5.8m is projected in 2016-17 causing an 
equivalent pressure to the 2017-18 budget.  
 

 The deficit is mainly caused by the estimated impact of appeals, which when successful 
require the Council to pay backdated refunds and cause in year reductions in the 
rateable value of business property. The projection of this deficit has increased as new 
appeals have been received and estimates for outstanding appeals have further uplifted. 
In addition, growth in Business Rate income has been lower than anticipated.  

Page 35



36 
 

 

 The Business Rates deficit in 2016-17 (impacting in 2017-18) will be partially 
compensated by the projected Council Tax surplus outlined previously. In addition, this 
deficit will be further offset because the 2017-18 Council Tax base has increased 
significantly above the Medium Term Financial Strategy (Calculation of Bradford’s 
Council Tax Base and Business Rates Base for 2017-18, Executive 10 January 2017). 

 

 The forecast Business Rates deficit and Council Tax surplus have been factored into the 
2017-18 Budget Planning. 

 

 For Business Rates the collection figure at 31st December 2016 is 78.35% (compared 
to 79.21% at the same time last year) and is marginally under target. This is in part due 
to changes in rateable value for several large value properties resulting in payments not 
being collected in the month and the payment plan being recalculated over the reminder 
of the year.  

 

Business Rates Collection At Qtr 3 14/15 At Qtr 3 15/16 At Qtr 3 16/17 

Number of Business Rates bills issued plus the number of summonses 17,933 18,620 20,290 

CIS_034 (BV10) - Business Rates collected in year to 3
rd
 qtr £000s 117.6 115.2 118.3 

BV10 % Business Rates collected in year  to the 3
rd
 qtr 81.87% 79.21% 78.35% 

Business Rates Collection Target at the 3
rd
 qtr 80% 80% 79% 

 
 
 
9.0  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

 The Financial risks of future known and uncertain liabilities are being addressed 
through contingencies and provisions outlined in this report.  

 
10.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

 This report is submitted to the Executive in accordance with the Budget and Policy 
Framework Procedure rules 

 
11.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None 
 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 

12.1 To review and comment on the Qtr 3 Financial Position Statement for 2016-17 
 
 
 
13.0 APPENDICES 
   
  
 Appendix 1   Reserves Statement as at 31st December 2016 
 Appendix 2 Departmental Earmarked Reserves as at 31st December 2016 
 Appendix 3  Capital Investment Plan 
  
 

Page 36



37 
 

14.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 Mid Year Finance and Performance Executive Report 8th November 2016 

 Qtr 1 Finance  Report 2016-17 Executive Report 19 July 2016 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/18  to 2019/20 and Beyond incorporating the 
Efficiency Plan -  Executive Report 19 July 2016  

 Annual Finance and Performance Outturn Report 2015-16 Executive Report 19 July 
2016 

 The Council’s Revenue Estimates for 2016/17 & 2017/18 – Council Report R 25 
February 2016 

 The Council’s Capital Investment Plan for 2016/17 to 2019/20 – Executive Report BB 
23 February 2016 

 Section 151 Officer’s Assessment – Council document S 25 February 2016 
 

Page 37



38 
 

 
Reserves Statement as at 31st December 2016              Appendix 1                                            

  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Closing  
Balance 

£000 Comments 

A. Reserves available to support the annual revenue budget   

Unallocated Corporate Reserves 19,919 -6,107 
 

13,812 The approved 2016-17 Budget used 
£6.2m of unallocated reserves. 

Total available Unallocated Corporate 
Reserves 19,919 -6,107 13,812   

          

B Corporate Earmarked Reserves to cover specific financial risk or fund specific programmes of work. 

          

Employment Opportunities fund 1,025 0 1,025 Funding to support young and 
disadvantaged people into 
employment 

Managed severance 4,093  0 4,093 Money to meet termination costs in 
the years beyond 2017-18. 

Exempt VAT 2,000  0 2,000 Amount set aside to meet the 
estimated cost of VAT that the 
Council would not be able to 
recover should it exceed its partial 
exemption limit. 

Waste Collection and Disposal Options 4,029 0 4,029 A Trade Waste VAT claim resulted 
in a £4.4m reimbursement. This 
has been set aside to address 
future Waste Collection and 
Disposal costs 

Trade Waste VAT refund 463 -120 343 £120k per annum to be used in 
2015-16 onwards to contribute 
towards the cost of Financial 
Services. 

PFI credits reserve 805 0 805 Funding to cover outstanding 
potential Building Schools for the 
Future liabilities. 

Insurance 1,775 0 1,775 To mitigate and smooth the impact 
of any future increases in insurance 
premiums. 

Industrial Centres of Excellence 1 0 1   

Sports Strategy 165 0 165 To cover feasibility costs 
associated with the Sports 
Strategy. 

Single Status  24 0 24 To cover any residual 
implementation of Single Status 
costs. 

Capital Feasibility Studies   70 -70 0  

     

Transformation Programme  124 0 124 To fund transformational activity 

Better Use of Budgets  2,757 -2,757 0 £2.7m has been transferred back to 
Services to enable projects and 
activities carried over from 2015-16 
to be completed. 

Producer City Initiative  743 -559 184 To pump prime initiatives linked to 
the Council’s Producer City 
programme 

Regional Growth Fund 6,345 -900 5,445 The Council’s revenue match 
funding for the Regional Growth 
Fund 

Regional Revolving Investment Fund 3,956 0 3,956 Money set aside in 2013-14 carried 
forward to meet the Council’s 
commitment to the Regional 
Revolving Investment Fund. 

Discretionary Social Fund 1,848 0 1,848 To fund a replacement local 
welfare scheme following the 
government ending its Local 
Welfare Assistance grant 

Page 38



39 
 

  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Closing  
Balance 

£000 Comments 

programme at 31 March 2015. 

Transitional and Risk Reserve 7,748 -3,609 4,139 To help fund Transitional work, and 
cover risks. £3.6m has been used 
to support the 16-17 budget. 

Health Integration Reserves 222 0 222  Available to fund projects that lead 
to greater integration between the 
Council and its Health partners. 

Match Fund Basic needs Grant 700 0 700  

Strategic Site Assembly and Development 
 

0 800 800 
 

 

     

Sub Total 38,893 -7,215 31,678   

C. Reserves to support capital investment     

Renewal and replacement 11,917 -467 
 

11,450 Funding used to support the capital 
investment programme. 

Markets 1,231 0 1,231 Cumulative Market trading surplus’s 
to be re-invested in maintaining 
market buildings throughout the 
district. 

Sub total 13,148 -467 12,681   

D. Service Earmarked Reserves 42,829 -1,245 41,584  See Appendix 2 

E. Revenue Grant Reserves 8,389 -2,308 6,081   

F General Reserves         

General Fund 10,803 0 10,803 The GF balance acts as a 
necessary contingency against 
unforeseen events.  The balance at 
31st March represents a minimum 
of 2.5% of the Council's budget 
requirement in line with council 
policy and the general advice of 
External Auditors.  

Schools delegated budget 33,802 0 33,802 Represents in the main balances 
held by schools as part of delegated 
budget responsibility.  These 
balances are not available for 
Council use but are balances 
attributable to individual schools. 

Sub total General Fund Reserve & School 
balances 

44,605 0 44,605   

Grand total 167,783 -17,342 150,441   

Page 39



40 
 

Appendix 2          
Departmental Earmarked Reserves Statement as at 31st December 2016                    
  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Latest 
Balance 

£000 Comments 

Health and Wellbeing       

Supporting People 2,065 0 2,065 Funding to support invest to 
save projects 

Integrated Care 5,347 0 5,347 NHS and Council  monies 
used to support ring fenced 
projects  and integration of 
health and social care 

Great Places to Grow Old 604 -168 436 
 

Funding to cover 
management and staffing 
costs linked to the 
transformation of services for 
older people.  

District Tenants Federation  30 0 30 Funding committed to 
provide support to District 
Tenants Federation  
 

Stock Condition 95 0 95 Funding to procure Stock 
Condition Surveys. 

Social Lettings 664 0 664 To undertake a feasibility 
study for a Social lettings 
Agency. 

Homelessness prevention 1,045 0 1,045 To fund initiatives to prevent 
Homelessness. 
 

Care Act Reserve 4,863 -540 4,323 To support the 
implementation of the Care 
Act 

     

Public Health 182 -123 59  

Total Health and Wellbeing 14,895 -831 14,064   

          

Children Services         

BSF Unitary Charge  6,568 0 6,568 These reserves are being 
built up to ensure that in the 
future there is sufficient 
money available to meet the 
cost of BSF annual contract 
payments when the PFI grant 
the Council receives reduces 

BSF Unitary Charge Phase 2  4,093 0 4,093 See above 

Dilapidation  1,000 0 1,000 At the end of a lease on a 
building, the Council will be 
liable for any dilapidations of 
the building. 

Better Start Programme 90 0 90 Council’s two year 
contribution to a programme 
that will bring in £50m of 
revenue investment to the 
District over a 10 year period. 

Safeguarding Board 85 0 85 Support for the Council in its 
role as the accountable body 
for the Bradford Children’s 
Safeguarding Board 
 

     

Page 40



41 
 

  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Latest 
Balance 

£000 Comments 

Routes to Work 361 0 361 Employment and Skills 
funding that was carried 
forward from 2014-15 to 
complete initiatives that span 
more than twelve months. 

Advanced Skills Fund 386 0 386 

Retail Academy (Skills for Employment) 337 0 337     

Training Work Programme (Skills for Work) 1,031 0 1,031 

Total Children 13,951 0 13,951   

     

Finance     

Non Council Events programme 10 0 10 To support events put on by 
non Council . 

Community Support and Innovation Fund 404 0 404 To support community led 
service provision and 
investment in initiatives that 
engage with vulnerable 
people. 

Subsidy Claim 711 0 711 Contingent support set aside 
to address the fluctuations in 
the subsidy claims. 

ICT Programmes Budget 4,900 0 
 

4,900 To fund future ICT projects 

UC Admin Reserve 545 0 545 To help cover the cost of the 
implementation of universal 
credit administration. 

Total Finance 6,570 0 6,570   

          

Environment and Sport         

Marley pitch replacement 305 0 305 To provide match funding 
under the terms of grants 
given to maintain Sports and 
Leisure venues across the 
District 

Waste disposal procurement 278 0 278 Set aside to meet 
Departmental costs 
associated with delivering a 
Waste Management solution  

Customer Service Strategy 849 -14 835 Non recurring investment to 
be used to fund the 
Customer Service Strategy. 

Taxi Licensing 320 0 320 Statutory requirement to set 
aside any taxi licensing 
surplus when setting future 
fees. 

Theatres Box Office 96 0 96  

Cricket Pitch Refurbishment 310 0 310  

Culture Service Transition 121 0 121 To cover costs associated 
with modernising the service 
and adopting a different 
service delivery model. 

Art Fund 12 0 12 To fund the purchase of 
works of Art. 

Page 41



42 
 

  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Latest 
Balance 

£000 Comments 

HLF Building Maintenance 10 0 10 A condition of the HLF grant 
is that an asset management 
programme is in place to 
maintain Manningham 
Library to a specified 
standard.  

Torex 10 0 10 To address e-Govt targets 
and improve service delivery. 

Saltaire Tourist Information Centre 15 0 15  

Culture Company 200 0 200 Help create a Culture 
Company 

Gym Equipment 133 0 133 To fund replacement gym 
equipment in Sports Facilities 

Museum Restoration 133 -57 76  

Tour De Britain 
 

8 0 8  

Tour De Yorkshire 139 0 139  

Lidget Moor YC 18 0 18 To support Youth Services in 
Lidget Green Area 

Total Environment and Sport 2,957 -71 2,886   

          

Regeneration         

Empty Homes 125 0 125 To support the on-going 
programme to bring empty 
homes back into use 

Council Housing Reserve 375 0 375 To meet future costs 
associated with later stages 
of the affordable housing 
programme 

Housing Development Programme 212 0 212 Fee income generated to be 
used to subsidise the 
delivery of projects in future 
years.   

Facility Management Service Improvement 515 0 515 To support investment in 
service improvements and 
cover against uncertainty in 
the client base 

City Park Sinking Fund 630 0 630 Funding set aside to meet 
the future maintenance costs 
of City Park. 

European Structural Investment Programme 867 0 867 Match funding for ESIP 

Empty Rates Relief Scheme 500 0 500 Supporting Business Growth 

City Centre Regeneration W 150 0 150  

Total Regeneration 3,374 0 3,374   

          

Human Resources         

Schools Traded HR Reserves 106   106 To mitigate the risk of 
changes in customer base. 

Page 42



43 
 

  

Opening 
Balance 

£000 

Movement in 
2016-17 

£000 

Latest 
Balance 

£000 Comments 

Business Support Centre 145 -73 72 To support organisational 
development 

Workforce Development New Deal 530 -185 345 Changing the organisation - 
vision & values, recruitment 
& selection, development of 
managers, performance 
management, 
leadership & succession 
planning linked closely with 
the New Deal agenda. 
 

     

Learner Management System 85 -85 0 Software/system 
implementation etc in support 
of workforce development. 

Total Human Resources 866 -343 523   

         

City Solicitor     

District Elections 216 0 216 To smooth the cost of District 
Elections over a four year 
period. 

     

Total Service Earmarked Reserves  42,829 -1,245 41,584  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



44 
 

Appendix 3 

 

Capital Monitor 

       
 

Capital Executive Report 
        

Schem
e No Scheme Description 

Mid Year 
Exec            Changes 

 Re- 
profiled 
Budget 
201617 

 
Budget 

Apr - 
Dec 

Spend       
Dec 16 

Budget 
2017-18 

Budget 
2018-19 

Budget 
2019-20 

& 
Onwards 

    £'000   £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Health and Wellbeing Services 
  

  
 

  
  

  

CS0008 HIV Capital Grant 7 0 7 7 7 0 0 0 

CS0237 
Great Places to Grow 
Old 

255 0 255 255 294 11,756 3,914 1,313 

CS0239 
Community Capacity 
Grant 

1,115 -398 717 50 39 3,593 0 0 

CS0257 BACES Mattresses 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0275 
Bfd Demetia Friendly 
Env Pilot 

2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0311 
Autism Innovation 
Cap Grant 

19 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0312 Integrated IT system  410 0 410 410 278 0 0 0 

Total – Health and Wellbeing 1,810 -398 1,412 722 618 15,349 3,914 1,313 

    
  

 
  

  
  

Children's' Services 
  

  
 

  
  

  

CS0231 
C&I School (Conv 
Thorn Park) 

1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 

CS0025 
Childrens Home Res 
Prov 

6 0 6 6 0 0 0 0 

CS0227 
Designated Specialist 
Provision 

4 -3 1 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0249 Schools DRF 3,000 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0256 
2yr old Nursery Educ 
Expansion 

407 0 407 251 252 0 0 0 

CS0278 
Targeted Basic 
Needs 

260 -47 213 175 174 47 0 0 

CS0286 
Outdoor Learning 
Centres 

340 -32 308 296 296 30 0 0 

CS0297 
Universal Free Sch 
Meals – Kitchen 

26 0 26 3 2 0 0 0 

CS0022 
Devolved Formula 
Capital 

3,145 0 3,145 3,670 3,670 0 0 0 

CS0030 
Capital Improvement 
Work 

200 -13 187 73 72 0 0 0 

CS0042 
Primary Capital 
Programme 

124 -12 112 111 111 0 0 0 

CS0240 
Capital Maintenance 
Grant 

5,932 0 5,932 3,473 3,520 4,538 0 0 

CS0244 
Primary Schools 
Expansion Prog 

9,500 -4,100 5,400 3,682 3,130 16,392 16,906 0 

CS0244 
Silsden School 
£7.265m Exec 
minutes 12/04/16 

0 600 600 600 534 1,900 5,000 1,045 

CS0313 School Capital Loans 400 0 400 200 0 550 0 0 

CS0314 
Foster Homes 
Adaptation 

187 0 187 50 0 0 0 0 

CS0316 
Tracks Educational 
provision 

185 0 185 86 86 0 0 0 

CS0322 
Horton Park Prim 
Open Spaces 

176 -7 169 156 156 14 0 0 

CS0343 
Childrens Home Build 
Works 

227 0 227 86 56 0 0 0 

Total - Children's' Services 24,120 -3,614 20,506 12,919 12,060 23,471 21,906 1,045 

          

          

Page 44



45 
 

Scheme 
No Scheme Description 

Mid Year 
Exec           

08 Nov 
16 Changes 

 Re 
profile 
Budget 
201617 

Profile 
Budget 

Apr - 
Dec 

Spend      
Dec 16 

Budget 
2017-18 

Budget 
2018-19 

Budget 
2019-20 

& 
Onwards 

Environment & Sports                 

CS0060 
Replacement of 
Vehicles  

3,000 0 3,000 1,200 1,125 3,000 3,000 6,000 

CS0066 
Ward Investment 
Fund 

35 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0151 
Building Safer 
Commun 

47 0 47 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0063 
Waste Infrastructure 
& Recycling  

0 36 36 18 18 590 474 0 

CS0090 
Landfill Restoration 
Sugden End  

40 0 40 40 41 0 0 0 

CS0132 Community Hubs  25 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0283 
Above Ground Fuel 
Storage 

60 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0324 
Waste Minimisation 
Strategy 

369 81 450 409 409 0 0 0 

CS0328 
Cliffe Castle Chimney 
Project 

69 0 69 69 1 0 0 0 

CS0340 St George's Hall 3,788 -3,568 220 170 170 3,568 0 0 

CS0121 Roberts Park 53 0 53 53 3 0 0 0 

CS0128 
Queensbury Sport & 
Soc Club 

0 4 4 4 4 0 0 0 

CS0129 Scholemoor Project 0 0 0 0 0 83 0 0 

CS0162 
Capital Projects - 
Recreation 

510 -300 210 160 161 0 0 0 

CS0187 
Comm Sports Field & 
Facili 

53 0 53 53 0 0 0 0 

CS0229 
Cliffe Castle 
Restoration 

3,673 -604 3,069 1,366 724 605 479 0 

CS0242 War Memorial 5 0 5 5 3 0 0 0 

CS0288 Thornton Grammar 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 

CS0347 
Park Ave Cricket 
Ground 

570 150 720 640 636 0 0 0 

CS0245 Doe Park 194 0 194 50 9 0 0 0 

CS0349 Chellow Dene Reservoir 300 0 300 200 85 0 0 0 

CS0284 
Sport Facilities Invest 
Prog  

6,500 -6,056 444 444 447 7,000 15,000 4,580 

CS0107 Markets   20 15 35 35 25 50 50 707 

CS0327 
Oastler Market 
Redevelop 

200 -165 35 35 25 100 2,159 0 

 
Westgate Carpark 660 -640 20 15 15 125 0 1,115 

CS0247 
Replace Box Office 
Equip 

10 0 10 5 4 0 0 0 

Total - Environment & Sports 20,182 -11,047 9,135 4,972 3,908 15,121 21,162 12,402 

    
  

 
  

  
  

    
  

 
  

  
  

Regen - Estates & Property 
Services   

  
 

  
  

  

CS0094 Property Prog (bworks) 850 0 850 525 67 0 0 0 

CS0262 
Prop Prog - Office 
Ration/ Fmr Library 

225 0 225 225 247 0 0 0 

CS0294 
Prop Prog - Essential 
Maint 

589 0 589 400 293 0 0 0 

CS0295 
Property Prog - Invest 
to Save 

0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 

CS0309 
Birklands Mail Finishing 
Equip 

7 0 7 7 0 0 0 0 

CS0308 
Property Programme 
15/16 

233 0 233 233 207 0 0 0 

CS0333 
Argos Chambers / 
Britannia Hse 

1,620 0 1,620 780 768 723 0 0 

CS0344 Property Programme 1,000 500 1,500 500 545 0 0 0 

Page 45



46 
 

16/17 

CS0230 Beechgrove Allotments 274 0 274 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0050 Carbon Management 1,765 -450 1,315 250 249 1,620 0 0 

CS0157 
DEEP/Community 
Warmth 

96 0 96 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0305 LCR Green Deal Comm 76 0 76 76 5 0 0 0 

Total - Regen – Estates & Property 
Services 

6,735 50 6,785 2,996 2,386 2,343 0 0 

    
          

 

          

          

Scheme 
No Scheme Description 

Mid Year 
Exec           

08 Nov 
16 Changes 

 Re 
profile 
Budget 
201617 

Profile 
Budget 

Apr - 
Dec 

Spend      
Dec 16 

Budget 
2017-18 

Budget 
2018-19 

Budget 
2019-20 

& 
Onwards 

Regen - Economy & Development 
Services 

                

CS0134 
Computerisation of 
Records 

10 -10 0 0 0 10 0 0 

CS0136 
Disabled Hsg Facilities 
Grant 

3,800 0 3,800 2,600 2,527 4,273 2,471 4,942 

CS0137 
Development of Equity 
Loans 

1,000 -500 500 250 252 1,500 1,466 2,300 

CS0141 Area Renewals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0144 
Empty Private Sector 
Homes  

1,043 -243 800 350 398 1,021 243 0 

CS0158 Regional HALS 11 0 11 11 2 0 0 0 

CS0223 
Afford Housing - Beech 
Grove 

0 0 0 0 -260 0 0 0 

CS0225 
Afford Housing Prog 
11-15 

967 -767 200 200 152 240 0 0 

CS0308 
Afford Housing Prog 15 
-18 

5,050 800 5,850 2,550 3,040 18,468 2,258 0 

CS0250 Goitside 300 50 350 320 338 205 0 0 

CS0280 
Temp Housing Clergy 
House 

1,210 490 1,700 900 903 50 0 0 

CS0335 Bfd Cyrenians 279 -30 249 40 31 30 0 0 

CS0186 Enterprise Hubs 0 0 0 0 -5 0 0 0 

CS0213 Park Dam 6 0 6 3 4 0 0 0 

CS0269 
Burley In Whrfedle 
Culvert repair 

100 0 100 0 1 0 0 0 

CS0331 
Demolition Edwards 
Rainbow Ctre 

36 0 36 22 22 0 0 0 

CS0084 City Park 205 -205 0 0 0 205 0 0 

CS0085 
City Centre Growth 
Zone 

420 0 420 -70 -264 1,300 4,400 0 

CS0086 LEGI 51 -51 0 0 0 51 0 0 

CS0189 Buck Lane 100 -40 60 40 0 111 0 0 

CS0228 Canal Road 100 0 100 0 0 200 0 0 

CS0241 
Fmr College Builds 
Kghly 

556 -306 250 100 151 306 0 0 

CS0266 Superconnected Cities 25 0 25 10 0 882 0 0 

CS0291 Tyrls 1,200 -1,115 85 45 43 1,000 3,715 0 

CS0265 
LCR Rev Econ Invest 
Fund 

2,000 0 2,000 2,000 1,657 1,956 0 0 

CS0285 
Strategic Development 
Fund 

0 0 0 0 0 1,167 0 0 

CS0345 
Dev Land at Crag Rd, 
Shply 

235 150 385 300 436 1,441 0 0 

Total - Regen - Economy & 
Development Serv 

18,704 -1,777 16,927 9,671 9,428 34,416 14,553 7,242 

    
  

 
  

   
Regen - Planning, Transport & 
Highways   

  
 

  
   

Page 46



47 
 

CS0131 
Kghly Town Ctr 
Heritage Initi 

668 1 669 51 60 0 0 0 

CS0178 Ilkley Moor 12 0 12 12 12 18 0 0 

CS0179 Landscape Environ Imp 23 0 23 1 1 0 0 0 

CS0281 
Saltaire - Public Realm 
imp 

193 0 193 117 117 0 0 0 

CS1000 
Countances Way Bridge 
grant 

0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 

CS0071 Highways S106 Projects 213 -130 83 63 77 556 0 0 

CS0091 Capital Highway Maint 4,892 0 4,892 4,000 3,406 0 0 0 

CS0095 Bridges 894 1 895 850 819 0 0 0 

CS0096 Street Lighting 388 0 388 200 196 0 0 0 

CS0099 Integrated Transport 1,312 0 1,312 650 546 0 0 0 

CS0103 
WY Casualty Reduction 
Ptner 

42 0 42 6 6 0 0 0 

          

          

          

Scheme 
No Scheme Description 

Mid Year 
Exec           

08 Nov 
16 Changes 

 Re 
profile 
Budget 
201617 

Profile 
Budget 

Apr - 
Dec 

Spend      
Dec 16 

Budget 
2017-18 

Budget 
2018-19 

Budget 
2019-20 

& 
Onwards 

CS0164 
Local Intgrtd Transp 
Area Com 

1,122 0 1,122 500 478 0 0 0 

CS0168 
Connecting the City 
(Westfield) 

56 33 89 28 28 0 0 0 

CS0169 
Public Realm Impm't, 
City Ctre 

33 -33 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0172 
Saltaire R/bout 
Cong/Safety Works 

386 0 386 109 58 0 0 0 

CS0252 
Measures to Support 
Hubs 

0 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 

CS0264 Highway to Health 501 171 672 269 269 0 0 0 

CS0282 
Highways Strategic 
Acquisi 

208 0 208 1 1 0 0 0 

CS0289 Local Pinch Point Fund 542 0 542 24 24 0 0 0 

CS0293 
W Yorks & York Trsport 
Fund 

1,760 0 1,760 503 502 2,966 38,314 0 

CS0296 Pothole Fund 299 0 299 100 87 0 0 0 

CS0306 
Strategic Transp 
Infrastr  

0 0 0 0 0 1,810 5,500 0 

CS0302 
Highways Prop Liab 
Redn  

121 0 121 6 6 0 0 0 

CS0307 Bus Hot Spots 70 -11 59 59 59 0 0 0 

CS0310 
Clean Vehicle Tech 
Fund 

3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 

CS0317 VMS Signage 43 0 43 2 2 0 0 0 

CS0319 Challenge Fund 1,530 1,100 2,630 470 435 750 0 0 

CS0323 Flood Risk Mgmt 55 0 55 27 7 0 0 0 

CS0325 
Street Lighting Invest to 
Save 

508 -124 384 140 124 0 0 0 

CS0329 Damens County Park  138 62 200 120 110 0 0 0 

CS0332 Flood Funding 2,500 0 2,500 1,100 992 0 0 0 

CS0334 
Air Quality Monitoring 
Equip 

33 0 33 33 24 0 0 0 

CS0346 
WY+TF Forster Sq 
Station Gtwy Imp 

700 0 700 1 1 0 0 0 

CS0350 
Street Lighting Invest to 
Save 

1,650 -1,650 0 0 0 1,650 0 0 

CS0353 
Strat Land Purch Hard 
Ings Kghly 

0 0 0 0 0 950 0 0 

CS0355 
StratLland Purch 
Harrogate Rd/New Line 

0 0 0 0 0 3,500 0 0 

Page 47



48 
 

Jct 

Total - Regen - Planning, Transport 
& Highways 

20,895 -580 20,315 9,442 8,445 12,275 43,814 0 

    
  

 
  

  
  

Reserve Schemes & Contingencies 
  

  
 

  
  

  

    
  

 
  

  
  

    
  

 
  

  
  

 
General Contingency 4,676 400 5,076 0 0 2,000 2,000 0 

CS0277 
Wyke Manor Ph2 
Sports Dev 

493 -493 0 0 0 0 493 0 

 
Essential Maintenance 
Prov 

500 -500 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 4,000 

 
Bfd City Ctre 
Townscape Herit 

2,750 -2,750 0 0 0 2,750 0 0 

 
Keighley One Public 
Sector Est 

0 0 0 0 0 3,000 10,000 5,000 

 
Depots 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 

 
Bereavement Strategy  0 0 0 0 0 0 8,500 8,500 

Total - Reserve Schemes & 
Contingencies 

8,419 -3,343 5,076 0 0 9,750 25,993 17,500 

    
  

 
  

   

TOTAL - All Services 100,865 -20,709 80,156 40,722 36,844 112,725 131,342 39,502 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



49 
 

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

 

Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the meeting 
of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be 
held on 2 February 2017. 

AL 
 
 

Subject:   
 
Bradford Poverty Scrutiny Review and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
recommendations progress report 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The report provides a progress update on implementation of the recommendations 
made by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 29 June 2016 and 
Executive of the 19 July 2016 that followed the Bradford Poverty Scrutiny Review.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director of Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Neighbourhoods and Community 
Safety 
 

Report Contact:  Helen Johnston  
Strategy and Engagement Officer 
Phone: (01274) 434401 
E-mail: helen.johnston@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7/



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The report provides a progress update on implementation of the recommendations 

made by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 29 June 2016 and 
Executive of the 19 July 2016 that followed the Bradford Poverty Scrutiny Review.  

 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Following the presentation of several reports, during the 2013/14 municipal year, to 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee concerning welfare reform, the 
Committee agreed, at its meeting of the 17 July 2014,  to review poverty across 
Bradford District.  
 

2.2 The review considered the causes, impact, and extent of poverty across the District 
alongside evaluating approaches to address these issues by the Council and its 
partners. 
 

2.3 The Scrutiny Poverty Review report was presented to Committee on 29 June 2016. 
The meeting approved the review report and recommended that: 
 

2.3.1 Executive instructs Bradford Council to develop a comprehensive Anti-Poverty 
Strategy addressing the multiple factors related to poverty including but not limited 
to: food, health, housing, children, energy and employment. The Anti-Poverty 
Strategy should include key actions monitored through a delivery plan and its 
development should involve a review of existing, subject specific poverty strategies 
to ensure efficiency and possible mergers to ensure a lack of duplication 
 

2.3.2 Further work to be undertaken reviewing how approaches in employment, 
education and skills can help reduce the number of people in poverty. 
 

2.3.3 A further progress report to be presented to this Committee in six months’ time. 
 

2.4 The Committee also agreed all of the Review report’s 22 recommendations. An 
update on progress against these recommendations is provided at Appendix A: 
Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation.  
 

2.5 At the Executive of the 19 July 2016, on receiving the recommendation from 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 29 June 2016, the Leader 
requested the Strategic Director Regeneration to review the recommendation in 
consultation with the Regeneration, Planning and Transport Portfolio Holder with a 
view to it being taken forward. 
 

2.6 Following the recent Council top management restructure, the former Departments 
of Regeneration and of Environment & Sport have been replaced by the 
Department of Place. Responsibility for implementing Council Executive’s request 
has now passed to the Strategic Director of Place.  
   

Page 52



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Bradford District Partnership’s governance review suggested there was a need for 

multi-agency work around poverty and fairness. A multi-agency Anti-Poverty Co-
ordination Group was agreed by the Strategic Director of Regeneration and the 
Regeneration, Planning and Transport Portfolio Holder as the approach to address 
this requirement. The group would oversee, develop,  and report on work to 
address the 22 recommendations made by the Scrutiny Poverty Review 
 

3.2 During 2016, a cross-discipline and multi-agency working group met and developed 
terms of reference for this group along with a draft delivery framework.  

 
3.3 The draft terms of reference (ToR) and draft delivery framework for the multi-

agency Group was agreed by Council Management Team (CMT) on the 16 
September 2016.  These documents are subject to amendment when the Group 
meets for the first time in mid-February.  
 

3.4 The draft ToR included membership of the group which would be drawn from the 
Council, other public sector and voluntary and community services partners and 
from the private sector.  Please find these draft documents at: 
 

 Appendix B: Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group draft terms of reference.  

 Appendix C: Draft delivery framework.  
 

3.5 The Group will report directly to the Bradford District Partnership Board. As 
appropriate it will present reports to Council Executive and to Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
3.6 While there has been a delay in forming the multi-agency Anti-Poverty Co-

ordination Group in order to secure proper partner input, work to address existing 
poverty strategies was taking place prior to the review and work has been taking 
place to implement the review recommendations since those recommendations 
were made, see Appendix  A.  
 

3.7 A role of the multi-agency Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group will be to ensure the 
implementation of these recommendations. Proposed action will be described in the 
Group’s work programme.  
 

3.8 Executive will shortly be presented with a report outlining proposed actions to  
mitigate against the impact of welfare changes on the poorest families in the district 
and how parents can be supported to access employment. This follows a request 
made at full Council of the 13 December 2016.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 53



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 
 

 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 

There are none arising from this report. 
 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 

There are none arising from this report 
 

 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

There are none arising from this report 
 
 

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
7.1.1 The Poverty Scrutiny Review highlighted a number of equality and diversity related 

issues. Research has also highlighted similar issues, such as a link to poorer 
health, lower educational outcomes etc.  
 

7.1.2 The Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group will consider equality and diversity issues in 
relation to its work.  
 

7.1.3 Key Performance Indicators will be used to evidence overall outcomes of anti-
poverty work across the district as well as the impact on individuals, groups and 
communities with protected equality characteristics.  
 
 

7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

There are none arising from this report. 
 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are none arising from this report. 
 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 

There are none arising from this report. 
 

Page 54



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

7.6 TRADE UNION 
 

There are none arising from this report. 
 

 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are none arising from this report but the work of the Anti-Poverty Co-
ordination Group should have some impact on all wards 

 
 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

None.   
 

9. OPTIONS 

In considering this report the Committee may wish to:  
 

9.1 Accept the progress made to implement the recommendations from the Scrutiny 
Poverty Review and the request made by the Council Leader to progress the 
recommendations made by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. .  
 

9.2 Suggest additional action that could be taken to implement the recommendations 
from the Scrutiny Poverty Review and the request made by the Council Leader to 
progress the recommendations made by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 

9.3 Both of the above options.  
 

9.4 Forward their recommendations to the Executive, Council and or other appropriate 
bodies.  
 

 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee:  

10.1 Accept the progress made to date against the recommendations of the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 29 June 2016 and Executive of the 19 July 
2016.  
 

10.2 Suggest other action the Committee believes the Council and or its partners should 
or could be taking to make a positive impact against poverty in the District.  
 
 
 

 

Page 55



Report to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 
 

11. APPENDICES 

Appendix A: Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against 
implementation 

Appendix B: Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group draft terms of reference.  

Appendix C: draft delivery framework. 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Scrutiny Poverty Review report 2016 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 29 June 2016 

Council Executive 19 July 2016 

Page 56

https://bradford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9718/29%20June%20Doc%20A.pdf
https://bradford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9718/29%20June%20Doc%20A.pdf
https://bradford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=6518&Ver=4


Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

NO RECOMMENDATIONS EXPECTED OUTCOMES LEAD PROGRESS -  12 JANUARY 2017 TIMESCALES 
1 This Committee recommends to the 

Executive that Bradford Council should 
develop a comprehensive Poverty 
Strategy addressing the multiple 
factors related to poverty including but 
not limited to: food, health, housing, 
children, energy, and employment. The 
Poverty Strategy should include key 
actions, monitored through a delivery 
plan, and its development should 
involve a review of existing, subject-
specific poverty strategies to ensure 
efficiency and possible mergers to 
ensure a lack of duplication. A 
Councillor and Officer should be 
appointed as Poverty Champions to 
oversee this work. 
 

Creation of formal 
strategic group to create 
accountability and 
oversee the development 
of the strategy and wider 
outcomes via the 
Delivery Framework and 
Plan  

Helen 
Johnston 

Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group draft 
ToRs agreed by CMT  
 
Poverty and Inclusive Growth 
presentation to BDP Board 16 Sept 16 
 
22 Nov 16: 
Anti-Poverty Coordination Group to meet 
early 2017 to accommodate 
representatives availability  
 
Member Champion: 
Cllr Cath Bacon 
Officer Champion:  
Steve Hartley  
Draft Terms of Reference, delivery 
framework and plan to be presented at 
the meeting. 

Group by end of 
January 2017 
 
Delivery 
Framework and 
Plan by Summer 
2017 

P
age 57



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

2 This Committee recommends that 
officers support the Food Poverty 
Networks as they continue their role in 
developing the practicalities of 
extending the opening hours of food 
banks and other relevant services to 
ensure that users experiencing in-work 
poverty can access services out of 
routine working hours. 

To ensure that services 
helping vulnerable 
people are accessible 
outside of working hours 
to enable those on low 
incomes and/or in 
insecure employment 
can still get appropriate 
support   
 
Four area based services 
to be offering out of 
hours services by end of 
2017 

Sarah 
Possingham 

There has been an increase in the 
amounts of food banks operating across 
the District.  
 
Food banks generally operate during 
working hours; hot food provision 
generally operates after hours. 
 
New service specifications for welfare 
advice services require services to be 
delivered in new ways. This includes 
through new media and out of traditional 
working hours. This means that food 
parcels from Metropolitan Food bank will 
be accessible after hours. 
 
In some of the hot food projects food 
parcels are also offered. This needs to be 
built on further.  
 
There are also two food networks in 
Bradford - Bradford City and Airedale. 
These have developed independently 
from the council and meet regularly to co-
ordinate services.  
 
Support to produce printed information 
about services and access times etc has 
been led by Well Springs and funded by 
the LA. 

On-going through 
to December 2017 

P
age 58



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

3 This Committee recommends that the 
Food Poverty Networks support their 
members to offer basic cooking 
instructions to be included in food 
parcels and for wider distribution. 

To support more efficient 
and healthier meal 
choices  
 
To support service users 
to cook and to help them 
understand what to do 
with different ingredients  

Sarah 
Possingham 

The large Food banks currently offer 
simple nutritional recipes for those in 
receipt of food parcels -Trussel, Metro etc.  
The two local food poverty networks are 
encouraging and supporting new 
providers to do the same. Wellsprings has 
been supporting this approach across the 
smaller faith based groups  

On-going  

 

 

4 This Committee recommends that 
people who cannot cook food are 
correctly signposted to services which 
offer cooking courses, nutritional 
advice and help with budgeting and 
shopping These services offer support 
for a wide range of communities in 
need including those with specific 
cultural and religious needs. 

Community asset 
building helps ensure 
householders can move 
away from more 
expensive less nutritional  
take-aways whilst 
cooking food which is fun 
and good for people   

Sarah 
Possingham 

 There is a range of different services 
offering help with learning to cook and 
produce healthy meals.  
Individuals are signposted to healthy 
weight management classes.  
 
School dinner staff in all Bradford schools 
have been trained to disseminate 
information on healthy eating for pupils 
and/or parents/ guardians.  
 
The types of ‘healthy weight’ management 
courses funded include advice relating to 
healthy eating.  
 
Attendees of these courses are from a 
wide range of organisations.   
 
This work can be further enhanced partly 
via School Nursing Commission.  
 
The big food banks also give out easy 
recipe information as part of their parcels. 
 

On-going  

P
age 59



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

5 This committee recognises that funding 
from the Council’s Public Health dept. 
supports a central project in Bradford 
City ‘The Storehouse’ which has 
facilitated ‘Fareshares’ to work across 
Bradford district an organisation that 
intercepts food and can supply food 
banks and help ameliorate the 
‘pressures’ faced by some food banks 
in managing demand. 
 

To ensure that food 
parcel providers and 
fresh food distributors 
have access to a range 
of fruit and veg thereby 
balancing food parcels 
more effectively   

Sarah 
Possingham 

Equipment such as a walk-in chiller have 
been funded and installed at the 
Storehouse in central Bradford.  
 
Additionally funding has been provided to 
Fareshares to create a base in Bradford. 
 
This means that a much larger amount of 
fresh produce can be intercepted and 
distributed accordingly. 
 
Inn churches (the Storehouse provider) 
also has been able to make similar 
relationships with M&S and Delifresh both 
of whom now donate any surpluses to 
them.  
 
In addition to the above Inn churches 
(who manages the Storehouse) offers 
mobile food markets in deprived areas of 
the district where people can access fresh 
and/or intercepted food on a ‘pay as you 
can’ basis.  

On-going  

6 This Committee recommends that the 
Food Poverty Network works continue 
to engage with stakeholders on 
addressing food waste at the 
production and distribution stage of the 
food cycle to ensure the benefits are 
felt across different providers, such as 
food banks and “pay as you feel” 
cafes. 

Redirection of surplus 
food annually  
 
Increased range of food 
providers using 
Storehouse and including 
fresh food in food parcel 
contents  
 

Sarah 
Possingham 

See above the co-ordination of surplus 
food from the markets/retailers takes 
place via the ‘Storehouse’ The  installation 
of a walk in chiller and Fareshares being 
based there has supported this and the 
previous outcome  

On-going  

P
age 60



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

7 This Committee recommends that 
officers and the Food Poverty 
Networks work together with food 
banks and other providers to support 
the gathering of more robust data, to 
understand the demand, needs and 
trends of those in food poverty across 
the district. 
 

Robust data on numbers 
accessing services 
collected quarterly  
 
Robust data on service 
user profiles and needs 
through annual snapshot   

Sarah 
Possingham 

 Members of the network and local 
authority commissioned activity are being 
asked via the West Yorkshire Food 
poverty Network to submit statistics and 
information to understand the Bradford 
picture. 
This is being led by Wellsprings and the 
Keighley food poverty network with 
support from officers  

On-going  
 
 
 

8 This Committee recommends that 
officers from Bradford Councils 
Employment and Skills team prepare a 
report outlining its approach to 
increasing the skills and qualifications 
of Bradford’s workforce for the 
Regeneration and Economy Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, taking into 
account school leavers, physical and 
mental health problems, vulnerable 
families, English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) and adult learning 

Offering support and 
opportunities for: 
 

 Skills and Training 

 Employment 

 Apprenticeships 
 
Supporting Industrial 
Centres of Excellence 
 
 

Michael 
Jameson  

Get Bradford Working is an inclusive 
growth Employment Investment 
Programme for the Bradford District. 
Drawing together key initiatives to tackle 
issues and barriers facing Bradford’s 
residents in the labour market. 
This is a £13.5 million pound investment 
from a range of partners and includes 
services aimed at 14-19 year olds: 
apprenticeships, jobs etc. 
 
A progress report is being presented to 
Regeneration and Economy OSC 28 
March 2017. 
 
Up to September 2016,  
 

 Skills House had supported 617 
unemployed people into work 

 Employment Opportunities fund has 
created and filled 912 jobs 
 

As at 12 January 2017 Get Bradford 
Working programmes had supported over 
2750 individuals into employment across 
Bradford 

On-going  

P
age 61



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

9 This Committee requests that as 
Bradford Council commissions Welfare 
Advice Services in the coming months, 
that any gaps in debt service 
provisions are included in new service 
requirements 

Over the 4 years of the 
contracts services will be 
transformed 
 
Easier and more effective 
access to advice 
Reduced re peat visits  
Higher quality services  

Sarah 
Possingham  

The tender process has been completed 
and new contracts commenced from 16th 
January 2017. 

There are 5 new welfare  advice contracts 
4 are area based one is focussed on 
complex and continuing ill health   

All include basic and complex advice 
service as well as debt support; 
immigration and other key specialist 
services  

4 year contracts 
however providers 
are expected to 
work towards the 
new service 
description by 
year 3   
 
Complete 

10 This Committee requests that 
consideration is given within the re-
commissioning of welfare advice 
services to making sure that welfare 
advice and debt services are made 
available across the Children’s service 
clusters. 

Easy access to welfare 
advice for vulnerable 
families  
Less families in debt  
More families with 
maximised income  

Sarah 
Possingham  

Welfare advice services are required to be 
aligned and delivered  with the children’s 
centre clusters as part of the service 
specifications 
  

See above  
 
Complete 

11 This Committee requests that Bradford 
Council restricts access to payday 
lender websites on all public access 
computers and Council-backed Wi-Fi 
services. 

To make clear that the 
Council and partners will 
not support unscrupulous 
money lenders 
 
To support people to 
access better credit 
facilities  

David 
Cawthray 

This has already been implemented by  
Council ICT -  a number of other partners 
have also done the same   
Open events have been run on some of 
the outer estates and in Airedale to warn 
people of the danger of loan sharks and 
door step lenders  
 

Complete  

P
age 62



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

12 The Poverty Champions to liaise with 
the Credit Union to explore ways of 
increasing membership to the Credit 
Union across the District. 

Support people to access 
better credit facilities 
 
Community centres 
annually participating as 
collection points  
 
Short term events at key 
times such as: 
Christmas/Easter/Ramad
an/Eid to raise 
awareness of CU and 
affordable credit access  

Steve Hartley 
Cllr Cath 
Bacon 

Developing CU collection/ information 
points  in community centres & schools 
around the district with further 
development planned-20 community 
centres already operating  
 
Working with the Food Poverty networks 
& Food Bank networks to promote CU 
and where to get financial advice. 
 
Working with Church Urban fund to 
increase collection pints in places of 
worship  
 
Weekly CU surgeries at the BRI and St 
Luke’s assisting staff (especially manual 
staff) facing financial hardship with CU 
savings and loans as well as signposting 
for advice. 

On-going  

13 The Council’s Children’s Services 
Department to liaise with Children’s 
Centre clusters with a view to making 
all District Children’s Centres Credit 
Union Information Points. 

Developing partnerships 
between the CU and 
Children’s Centres to 
reduce household debt 
for vulnerable families 
 
Increase in access to 
affordable credit  

Martin Stubbs  To support the Children Centres to have 
better working relationships with CU,  
CU and the Council has attended 
Cluster’s team meetings with information 
and are seeking to pilot volunteer buddy 
system in January 2017 to assist those 
facing debt and financial hardship in 
partnership with the Advice network. The 
training will be provided by the Credit 
Union. 

January 2017  

P
age 63



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

14 The Schools Forum to fund further 
Credit Union Collection Points in 
partnership with the LifeSavers 
partnership, with the Church of 
England. 

To increase financial 
literacy amongst 
householders by training 
and supporting children 
and families  
 
 

Martin Stubbs  Working in partnership with the CofE and 
Young Enterprise to provide savings clubs 
at 5 schools 
LifeSavers had 2 primary schools last 
year with 3 more this year, combining 
Financial Education with Savings Clubs – 
the initiative is going well. 
Providing financial education to children 
and parents at assemblies/ events to 
promote CU and signpost for advice. 
Credit Union are  networking with centres, 
faith centres and schools as well as debt 
agencies to promote financial inclusion 

2017  

15 The Committee requests that Bradford 
Council continues to promote the 
Credit Union as free staff benefits to 
employers across the District. 
 
 

Increase credit union 
accounts in the 
forthcoming year  
 
 
 
 
Scope to develop this 
further with the Financial 
Inclusion Development 
Officer through staff 
information days 
 
 

Martin Stubbs  The payroll scheme has recently been 
extended to new organisations through 
networking and promotion. 
The NHS in Bradford District has 
endorsed CU to promote savings and 
loans to staff through their payroll. 
Weekly financial surgeries held at BRI 
and St Luke’s to promote CU and 
signpost for debt advice. 
New payroll agreement with Sovereign 
Heath for a Christmas Club to start in 
January 2017. 
Events held across Incommunities to 
promote CU to new staff. 

2017 

P
age 64



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

16 This Committee recommends that 
Bradford Schools Forum explore 
funding options for wrap-around care 
at school for children; including 
provision of evening meals. 

Better access to food for 
school children  
 
Opportunity to offer 
access to food and food 
parcels for those in need 
in school setting  
 
Increase number of: 
 

 markets based in 
school settings 

 breakfast clubs  

 play schemes offering 
meals  

Michael 
Jameson  

Evidence from service providers shows 
that the issues are greater for breakfast 
clubs and meals outside of term time in 
play schemes etc.  
 
Some schools and food poverty projects 
are already delivering breakfast clubs.  
 
This year play schemes are working with 
food providers to offer meals as part of 
the programme. 
 
This is an area for development in this 
year’s priorities in Public Health.     

2017-2019 

17 This Committee requests that Bradford 
Councils Health and Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
reviews the joined up-working 
arrangements in place between the 
Voluntary Sector and Bradford District 
Care Trust, in diagnosing people with 
mental health conditions earlier who 
face benefits sanctions and for the 
Committee to report back on these 
findings 

 Clearer understandings 
of the impacts of poverty  
 
Clearer understanding of 
profile of people with 
mental health issues at 
risk of poverty  
 
Development of service 
responses for this client 
group   
 
 

Mustansir Butt/ 
Steve 
Gasgoyne  

The recommissioned Welfare Advice 
contract has provision of advice in mental 

health settings.  

2017- 2018 P
age 65



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

18 That the Poverty Strategy outlines an 
Action Plan to improve the quality of 
the housing stock for private sector 
rent in the Bradford District. 

a) To raise housing 
standards in the 
private rented sector 

 
 
 
 
 

Shelagh 
O’Neill/Julie 
Rhodes   

The Fuel Poverty Framework for Action 
for the Bradford District was adopted by 
Council Executive in September 2015. 
 
Various Green Deal Communities 
schemes delivered 127 external wall 
insulation measures to ‘hard to treat’ 
properties in Holme Wood & Thorpe Edge 
as well as 28 other energy efficiency 
measures to households in fuel poverty 
(including 24 homes in inner-city areas 
benefitting from ‘room in the roof’ 
insulation) 
 
BMDC Housing Standards identified 
2,067 hazards in the homes of private 
sector tenants in the first two quarters of 
2016/17, and 472 properties containing 
vulnerable homeowners 

Summer 2017 

P
age 66



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

18 That the Poverty Strategy outlines an 
Action Plan to improve the quality of 
the housing stock for private sector 
rent in the Bradford 
District……..continued  

b) To tackle fuel poverty 
and affordable warmth 
issues –reducing 
health impacts on 
householders such as 
respiratory illnesses 
etc. 

 

Sarah 
Possingham  
 
 

Warm Homes Healthy People Programme 
(WHHP) supports small-scale affordable 
warmth measures; home energy checks 
etc.  
 
Overall 800 were referred to the 
programme receiving home energy 
checks and or homes bonuses (Further 
details will be provided to COSC meeting 
on the 2 February 2017)  
 

 WHHP also includes the 
following; Practical fuel poverty 
measures- radiator foils, draft 
excluders, emergency heating, 

 Access to warm clothing, hats, 
scarves, coats etc.  

 Additional advice sessions for fuel 
related debts and top up for 
prepaid meters  

 Food parcels; community lunches 
and neighbourhood support 
networks  
 

WHHP is currently running until 31
st
 

March 2017 contingent on weather 
conditions. Full outturn figures for those 
supported will be available after that 

Summer 2017 

P
age 67



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

18  That the Poverty Strategy outlines an 
Action Plan to improve the quality of 
the housing stock for private sector 
rent in the Bradford 
District………continued  

c) Greater investment 
from both energy 
companies and 
regional sources to 
tackle affordable 
warmth in the district   

 

Pete Betts Bradford Council is part of  Leeds City 
Region local authorities partnership that 
has entered into a partnership  with Better 
Homes Yorkshire (BHY) offering advice, 
home surveys and a range of energy 
efficiency, heating and renewable energy 
measures to all owner occupier and 
privately rented homes across the 
Partners areas. 
 
BHY also offers households more 
vulnerable to fuel poverty access to 
funding (where eligible) through the 
Energy Company Obligation (ECO) 
scheme and other sources, including the 
successful bid to the Local Growth        - 
Central Heating Fund delivered 47 first 
time gas central heating systems to 
households in fuel poverty. 
The current ‘Tackling Fuel Poverty’ 
initiative is supported by the Local Growth 
Fund  on target to deliver over 120 
external wall insulation measures to ‘hard 
to treat’ properties in relatively deprived 
areas including Thorpe Edge & Bierley, 
with further schemes in Guardhouse and 
Lower Grange being investigated.  

Summer 2017 

P
age 68



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

19 This Committee recommends that 
Bradford Council and Partners to 
continue to ensure that preparations 
for Universal Credit are robust and 
form part of the wider Poverty Strategy. 

a) Smooth transition 
into Universal credit 
(UC)  

 
 
 

Martin Stubbs/ 
Sarah 
Possingham   

Bradford has purchased Policy and 
Practice UC and budget calculator that 
council, CAB, Incommunities and housing 
options can use with service users to help 
them financially budget and plan. 
 
On-going work and focus on the support 
that residents will need to face the 
Universal Credit (UC) transition so that 
advice services are not flooded on 
implementation internet, budget advice, 
debt management advice etc. 
 
Transformation programme for welfare 
advice providers to extend service 
through new media routes and out of 
hours has begun  
 
Greater linkages with financial literacy 
programmes; budgeting accounts & 
affordable credit etc. and internet options 
for those who do not have ready access  

2017/18/19 

P
age 69



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

19 This Committee recommends that 
Bradford Council and Partners to 
continue to ensure that preparations 
for Universal Credit are robust and 
form part of the wider Poverty 
Strategy……continued. 

b) Clear processes for 
supporting more 
vulnerable 
householders to 
access UC 

 
c) Greater 

understanding 
across support 
agencies of UC and 
UC requirements  

 

Martin Stubbs  Work in Revenues and Benefits is 
focussing on families affected by the 
benefits cap: 
GIS mapping in conjunction with MOSAIC 
to see where we might have gaps for 
those applying for Universal Credit which 
can only be done online. 
 
Pilot undertaken with DWP and 
Incommunities in Keighley to see where 
help maybe needed and a detailed 
analysis of those groups predicted to be 
negatively impacted by the welfare 
reforms – Further details will be tabled at 
the COSC meeting 2 February 2017.  
 
This has included a 'find my nearest' 
programme such as nursery; library; 
internet, customers can also phone 
customer service for them to do it for 
them; potentially Connect to Support will 
also be used  to get the messages out to 
those affected 

2017/18/19 

20 The Chair of the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to write to the 
Secretary of State for Work and 
Pensions regarding the concerns 
raised by Bradford charities over the 
impact of the sanctions regime on 
benefit recipients and to invite him to 
visit Bradford to speak to the charities 
and recipients first-hand. 
 

 Greater awareness of 
the impacts of welfare 
reform and overall 
changes to the benefit 
systems on the Bradford 
District and in particular 
vulnerable householders   

Mustansir Butt  To be confirmed 2017 

P
age 70



Appendix A: COSC Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 
 

Bradford Scrutiny Poverty Review recommendations – Progress against implementation to January 2017 
 

 

 

 

21 This Committee recommends that Job 
Centre staff, food bank volunteers, 
housing officers and all people who 
come into contact with individuals who 
have been sanctioned, to make people 
aware of the financial assistance 
measures available at the time of being 
sanctioned. The Poverty Champions 
should oversee this work. 

Reduction in the number 
of people being 
sanctioned 
 
Claimants are aware of 
where they can access 
essential support in the 
event of their benefits 
being sanctioned 
 
 

Steve Hartley 
and Cllr Cath 
Bacon 

New advice service specifications include 
specific support regarding welfare benefit 
requirements and help that can be made 
available to support vulnerable people to 
manage these.   
 
Work to be taken forward once new 
advice providers have completed initial 
integration involves multi-agency training 
and networking on a neighbourhood level 
to identify a more consistent approach 
around sanctions and/or destitution  
 
Food providers are working with advice 
providers and where possible offering 
advice services when food banks are 
operative e.g. Salvation army in Keighley 
and Trussel Trust in Central Bradford   

2017/18 

22 Bradford Council’s Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to receive a 
report back in 12 months, which 
monitors progress against all the 
recommendations contained within this 
Scrutiny Review. 

Progress made against 
all recommendations 
Action plans in place, if 
required to, ensure 
implementation.  

Helen 
Johnston 

Interim progress report provided to 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 2 February 2017 

June 2017 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

3/08/16 

Bradford District Partnership 
 

Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group 
(APCG) 

Draft: Terms of Reference  
 
 

  

1. AIM AND OBJECTIVES 

 
The Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) will provide policy direction and oversight to 
reduce poverty as part of the delivery of the District Plan outcomes.  The APCG will also 
ensure that this work is prioritised by partners both as individual organisations and through 
their work within the Strategic Delivery Partnerships, sub groups and networks.   

 The APCG will do this by:  

 Developing and implementing a delivery plan which focuses on gaps in services and 
includes commitments from key partner agencies. 

 Providing policy challenge, steer, direction and oversight of thematic areas of work. 

 Championing campaigns to promote anti-poverty related activity. 

 Identifying and removing any barriers which may impede progress and solutions. 

 Ensuring that any delivery plans developed address the specific needs of the District’s 
vulnerable and socially excluded groups who are more likely to experience poverty and 
deprivation. 

 Ensuring that work to mitigate the impact of poverty on residents is collaborative and well 
co-ordinated and has maximum impact. 

 Providing recommendations for prioritisation of resources to BDP Board and partner 
organisations.  

 Overseeing the development of an effective impact assessment and monitoring system 
(Performance Management Framework) which helps demonstrate the effectiveness of 
interventions and the difference made on the lives of residents of Bradford District. 

2. APPROACH  

 

 

Our approach will be built around the following: 

 Evidence-based, needs-led intervention;  

 Maximisation of external funding/resource options. 

 Holistic, person-centred approach, consistent across services in Bradford. 

 Collaborative working. 

 Responsive and flexible to the unique needs of individuals and families, able to adapt and 
evolve to assist and support the pathways of people. 

 Break existing cycles of poverty, deprivation and social exclusion in order to provide long-
term improvements in quality of life for people. 

 Help people to develop their own solutions, using accessible, high quality public, private 
and voluntary sector services, as required. 

 Celebrate diversity and actively challenge prejudice and discrimination. 

Appendix B: COSC  Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 

Page 73



 

 

3/08/16 

 Safeguard and enhance outcomes.  

 Be proactive for foreseeable future challenges e.g.  Housing requirements - impact of 
climate change and energy costs on, affordable warmth.  

  

3. DELIVERY OUTCOMES: 

 
The Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) will oversee the implementation of our shared 
interventions as outlined in Bradford District Anti-Poverty Framework and associated delivery 
plan.  

  

4. REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS: 

 
The Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) will report to the Bradford District Partnership 
Board and the Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on progress and 
developments. 

  

5. MEMBERSHIP: 

 Membership of the Anti-Poverty Coordination Group (APCG) will consist of named 
representatives from the Council and Partner organisations. In order to ensure effective 
working, the membership of the Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) needs to be kept to 
a manageable number. Consistency of representation is also vital, to enable the group to 
develop a shared understanding and commitment to the project. 

 Members of the group are expected to: 

 make policy and service delivery related decisions on behalf their respective organisations 

 Provide leadership (champion / sponsor) and direction for thematic areas of work and key 
activities 

 Facilitate linking with partners who are working towards similar objectives and/or with 
similar client groups 

 Assess the feasibility of proposed interventions 

 Make resources available for priority areas of work 

 Share information and data about service provision and performance in relation to agreed 
objectives to reduce inequalities 

 Members will include representation from the following partners: 

 Council Executive member – Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Planning and Transport - 
Chair 

 Council Member Champion  

 Bradford Council – Senior Officer representative x4 (One of these to be the nominated 
officer champion) 

 Voluntary Sector: one representative to be appointed by the District Assembly 

 Businesses / Employers representative 

 Clinical Commissioning Group representative 

 Department of Work and Pensions representative 

 Housing representative (Social sector landlord representative) 

Page 74



 

 

3/08/16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 BRADFORD DISTRICT PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
BRADFORD DISTRICT PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
BRADFORD DISTRICT PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Sub group of Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership 

 

 
 

 Faith Group representative 

 Protected characteristics groups representative 

 Migrant/refugee groups representative 
  

6. CHAIR 

 
The Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) Board will be chaired by the Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Planning and Transport. 

  

7. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

 
The group will meet on a quarterly basis. Additional meetings will be called at the Chair’s 
discretion. 

  

8. SUPPORT 

 
The Anti -Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) will work closely with Strategic Delivery 
Partnerships and their sub groups to ensure delivery of key actions and to provide a platform 
for escalating issues for policy steer or the removal of barriers and blockages. The APCG will 
also when required commission the set up of specific task and finish groups. These groups will 
inform the work of the APCG and will provide regular updates and escalate issues when 
required. 

 
Programme management support to the Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group (APCG) will be 
provided by the Council’s Office of the Chief Executive, with other support arrangements from 
Partners when necessary. 

  

9. GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The group will report s directly to the BDP Board. 

Universal 
Support 

Delivered 
Locally 
Group 

BRADFORD DISTRICT PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

Anti-Poverty Co-ordination Group 

Equalities & 
Community 

Relations 
Strategic 
Group* 

Healthy
 

Weight 
Delivery 
Board

 

Strategic Delivery Partnerships: 

Producer City – Better Skills, more good 
goods and a growing economy/ decent 
homes that people can afford to live in 

Children’s Trust – Great start, good 
schools 

Safer and Stronger Communities- Safe, 
clean and active communities 

Health and Well Being Board -  Better 
health, better lives.  
 

Consultation and engagement partnerships, groups and networks 

Bradford District Assembly Forums 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Bradford District Partnership  

Anti-Poverty Coordination Group 

Draft: Delivery Framework V0.01 
 

 
 

Strategic Aim:  To tackle poverty and the impact of poverty by: 

Prevention Support Reduction 
Stopping people getting into poverty  

e.g. providing the support structure that focuses on 
prevention and early intervention’s 

Helping people out of poverty  

e.g. building their  skills and capacity so they can 
benefit from opportunities to improve their life 
chances 

Reducing the impact of poverty on individuals and 
families  

e.g. support to address financial challenges, food 
and fuel poverty 

Principles: Our approach will incorporate the following principles: 

Equality 

Enabling community capacity and 
resilience 

People in charge of their own lives 

Prevention and early intervention 

Working together  

Partnership working – removing silos 

Every Pound  Counts 

Targeting resources and supporting 
the development of cost-effective and 
innovative solutions 

Objectives: Our delivery objectives will include the following 

Better skills, more good 
jobs and a growing 
economy 

Employability: Improving 
access to work – Education, 
skills and training, Inclusive 
growth 

Better skills, more good 
jobs and a growing 
economy 

Financial Inclusion: Increasing 
income and access to 
affordable credit   

Better health, better lives 

Health & Wellbeing: Reducing 
health inequalities related to 
poverty including food poverty  

Decent homes that people 
can afford to live in 

Housing – Improving access 
to suitable and affordable 
quality accommodation, fuel 
poverty and affordable warmth 

Safe, clean and 
active communities and  a 
great start and good 
schools for all our children 

Resilience: Supporting 
families and improving access 
to information and advice 
services, and building 
community support structures 

Impact:  Our interventions will lead to the following outcomes: 
Sustainable jobs growth that pays a fair living wage 

 

People can access local support to help 
deal with financial challenges 

Children living in poverty have the best life chances 

(other outcomes to be confirmed) 

 

Appendix C: COSC  Poverty Review Progress Report 2 February 2017 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Assistant Director of Revenues, Benefits 
and Payroll to the meeting of Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to be held on 2 February 2017 

AM 
 
 

Subject:   
 
Discretionary Payments 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides an update on the support provided by the Council, to financially 
vulnerable residents, through the Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) scheme and the 
Assisted Purchase Scheme (APS) during the period 1 April 2016 to 31 December 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Martin Stubbs 
Assistant Director, Revenues, 
Benefits and Payroll 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader of the Council & Strategic 
Regeneration 
 

Report Contact:  Paul Bland 
Phone: (01274) 437874 
E-mail: paul.bland@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 

This report provides an update on the support, provided by the Council, to financially 
vulnerable residents, through the Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) scheme and 
the Assisted Purchase Scheme (APS) during the period 1 April 2016 to 31 December 
2016. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
At a Committee meeting on 2 March 2016, when a report was presented on progress 
with the Discretionary Housing Payments scheme and the Assisted Purchase Scheme, 
the Committee resolved to ask for a further progress report in 12 months time. 
 
This report therefore gives an update on the support provided from 1 April 2016 to 31 
December 2016 on both the Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) scheme and the 
Assisted Purchase Scheme (APS), and also considers what changes, if any, need to 
be made to the schemes in response to forthcoming welfare benefit changes. 
 
The Council, at its meeting on 13 December 2016, following a Motion about the 
impacts of the welfare changes, resolved that “the Chief Executive bring a paper to the 
Executive about how the Council can mitigate the impact of welfare changes on the 
poorest families in the District and how the Council can support parents to access 
employment”. 
 
Both the DHP and APS schemes will be key elements in this mitigation 

 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) 

 
Members of the Committee will recall that the DHP scheme provides additional support 
with housing costs.  This national scheme, administered by Councils, helps people 
entitled to Housing Benefit and increasingly those in receipt of Universal Credit, where 
there is a Housing element, with certain housing costs that otherwise could not be met. 
The legislation sets the broad parameters of the scheme, and allows the Council to 
develop the scheme in support of local housing needs and priorities. 
 
Government funding for DHP has increased in the last few years due to the welfare 
changes; the Government have argued successfully, before the Courts, that the 
provision of this funding to local authorities mitigates the adverse impacts of the welfare 
changes (in particular, the social sector size criteria) on people who share one of the 
Equalities Act protected characteristics.  
 
Table A below, shows the number of DHP applications received by the Council, in the 
last 3 years, the number of lump sum payments made and the number of households 
assisted.  
 
 
 

 Page 80



 

Table A 2014 2015 2016 (1 Apr to 31 
Dec) 

Number of Applications 3,216 3,975 3,129 

Number of Households 
Assisted (weekly) 

1,699 2,923 1,597 

Number of Lump Sum 
Payments  

447 559 349 

 
Approximately two thirds of all applications received are successful. 
 
Based on the end of December information, we expect the number of applications to 
be similar to last year, although the number of households supported may be slightly 
less. This is because there has been a need to manage the fund more cautiously in the 
knowledge that the reduced Benefit Cap will take effect. Also, last year landlords and 
the Council were able to target specific groups and invite claims from them and this 
hasn’t happened this year. The number of lump some payments is expected to be 
similar to previous years and we know that there tends to be an increase in this type of 
award between December and March. 
 
 
The Service continues to work closely with Landlords and other stakeholders such as 
the Housing Options Team to promote the Discretionary Housing Payments scheme 
and to encourage them to identify and assist with applications for assistance.  This has 
a positive effect on helping tenants but also reducing the burden on other Council 
services, such as Housing and the homeless teams. 

 
Table B shows the main reasons for an award being made as a percentage of all DHP 
awards 

 

Table B 2015 2016 (1 Apr to 
31 Dec) 

2016 (Amount 
awarded to 31 

Dec) 

Reduction in Social Sector Size 
Criteria 

51% 46% £405,685.35 

Other reasons 38%** 42% £373,952.36 

Benefit Cap 4% 4% £39,065.03 

Changes to shared 
accommodation rate 

7% 8% £60,187.75 

 
**includes amounts for expectant mothers, reasonable rents, foster carers, arrears 
clearance and lump sums 
 
 
3.1.1 Reduction in Social Sector Size Criteria 
 
At the end of December 2016 there were 2,618 households affected by the Social Sector 
Size Criteria (SSSC); a reduction of 94 households compared to 2015. This reflects a slow 
but consistent downward trend in those affected by SSSC since its introduction in April 
2013, primarily the result of efforts by Social Landlords to ensure tenants are 
accommodated in appropriately sized property, in many cases working with the Council to 
use DHP’s to allow time for tenants to stay in their property until alternative 

Page 81



 

accommodation is identified. This is also reflected in the reduction in the amount of DHP 
awarded in these circumstances, from 51% to 46% this year – see Table B above. The 
Council has made awards in 815, cases meaning only a third of those affected receive 
additional support.  
 
3.1.2 Benefit Cap 
 
The number of households affected by the benefit cap has also reduced, from 220 to 149. 
This is primarily due to those affected moving in to employment or family circumstance 
changes, but the recent change in legislation which exempts from the cap those residents 
in receipt of Carers or Guardians Allowance has added to the overall reduction. In financial 
terms, the support provided to households subject to the Benefit Cap, whilst not 
insignificant, is comparatively small at 4% of the overall DHP spend or £39,000 (in 2016 to 
date) 
 
This legislative change also reduced the Benefit Cap to £20,000 and this has now been 
applied, to those households already capped, from 7 November 2016. The reduced cap 
was applied to any new cases during January 2017 and around 1,000 households have 
been affected for the first time. In preparation for this further reduction in the cap, the 
Council has carefully managed the fund this year to ensure that there is sufficient money 
available to meet the anticipated additional demand. 
 
 
3.1.3 Lump Sum Payments 
 
Lump sum payments are made for a number of reasons and Table C below shows the 
main reasons for the payment and the number paid to 31 December 2016 
 

TABLE C  

Reason For Lump Sum payment Number of Payments Made 

Rental Bonds 71 

Rent in Advance 117 

Removals, no shortfall 50 

Removals, reduced shortfall 18 

Removals, out of area 2 

To clear Arrears 20 

Housing Options 63 

 
DHP’s can be used to clear arrears in those cases where eviction is imminent and there is 
the potential of homelessness as a result. Removals can be for a variety of reasons not 
just as a result of the SSSC. For example there may be cases were claimants are fleeing 
domestic violence situations. The Housing Options team can deal with people who 
ordinarily would qualify for a DHP, but, because they are not in receipt of Housing Benefit 
or the housing element of UC, their application would be refused. Some landlords are not 
prepared to wait for a successful claim for bonds or rents in advance. However, working 
with the team who administer DHP’s, the Housing Options team are able to make 
payments to landlords, in lieu of a DHP being awarded, which results in a much more 
positive outcome for the applicant and the Council. 
 
 
 

Page 82



 

3.1.4 Disabled Persons 
 
Assistance is provided, within the DHP scheme, for disabled people living in adapted 
accommodation, the majority of those assisted are affected by the SSSC. If the cost of 
adapting a different property to meet their needs is prohibitive, the applicant will be 
supported to remain in their current property. Likewise if a disabled person requires the 
additional room for medical equipment or are unable to share a room with a partner due to 
disability, support would be available.  
 
It is worthy of note that a recent Court of Appeal decision means that the Government are 
required to change the law regarding the application of the SSSC where couples are 
unable to share a bedroom due to disability. Such a change is likely to reduce the need for 
DHP’s in these cases.   
 
In total, for the period April to December 2016 8% of the DHP budget has been used to 
support disabled households with their rent liability, with indefinite awards being granted 
where appropriate. This compares with 9% for the same period last year. 
 
 
3.1.5 Refused Awards 
 
Not all claims for DHP’s are successful. Table D shows the main reasons for refusing an 
award as a percentage of all refusals 
 

Table D 2014 2015 No, refused 
to 31 Dec 16 

Income sufficient to pay shortfall 22% 15% 166 

Requires a perm/long term award 13% 5% 27 

No shortfall 10% 6% 53 

Excessive expenditure 9% 3% 46 

Ineligible (no benefit claim) 9% 15% 155 

Insufficient Information 4% 8% 213 

. 
 
3.1.6 DHP in the future 
 
The current Policy intention is clear; DHP awards are usually made on a temporary basis 
until the applicant either moves to more suitable accommodation, reduces their 
expenditure or increases their income in order to meet their rent liability.  
 
The exceptions to this are where there are children of school age in the household and the 
family moving may have a detrimental effect on the child’s education, or they are 
approaching an age at an additional room would be appropriate, or, in the case of a 
disabled person, where the accommodation has been substantially adapted for their 
needs. In these cases a longer term or indefinite award can be made. 
 
Whilst this policy intent is clear and some claimants have used the award to help make the 
necessary changes, others have not. In reality some DHP awards are being made on a 
repeat basis and, because adequate funding has been available, these have been 
granted. Whilst this has been financially sustainable to date, it is neither the most effective 
use of public funds nor is it fair or equitable for the many other residents in the District who 

Page 83



 

have either made changes to their circumstances or are paying the full rent from their 
income. 
 
If the Council is minded to prioritise the use of this funding still further to support the most 
vulnerable, the scheme could be amended to support still further households who have 
children. It is clear that families with children will bear the brunt of many of the forthcoming 
changes; limiting the support provided through Child Tax Credit to two children; removal of 
the ‘family element’ of £545 per year in the calculation of various benefits; and the reduced 
level of income at which the benefits cap will apply.   
 
In addition, the Council could consider adding further conditionality to the DHP scheme by 
linking an award for DHP to the need to actively seek employment or take up skills training 
 
 
4 Local Welfare Provision 
 
As Members of the Committee will recall, the Government announced, in January 2014, 
that there would be no funding available from 1 April 2015, or thereafter, for local welfare 
provision. After receiving much feedback, the Government claimed that funding had been 
provided and identified an amount Council’s should spend on LWP within the Revenues 
Support Grant (RSG). However, unlike the first two years, this was not additional funding, 
but simply an amount identified in the RSG. Because of this, the Council took the decision 
to discontinue the local welfare scheme of Community Care Grants and Crisis Awards, 
known collectively as Discretionary Support Payments (DSP), in favour of a loan scheme 
(APS) to assist in purchasing essential household goods and for those experiencing 
severe financial hardship, the Council provided funding to the Advice Services to support 
the provision of food parcels and fuel top up. 
 
4.1 Assisted Purchase Scheme (APS) 
 
This scheme replaced the Discretionary Support Payment (DSP) scheme and is intended 
to help low-income households to buy or replace essential household items, such as 
cookers and beds, in order to maintain or improve their own health and well-being, or that 
of their family. It consists of two elements; the provision of new items, and the provision of 
second-hand/reconditioned items. 
 
Low income households (or individuals) who are able to apply to the scheme are:  

 those leaving a care home, prison , hospital or similar e.g. a women’s refuge, to 
become established in the community 

 those who are at risk of entering a care home, hospital or similar if they are not 
able to obtain certain essential items 

 those fleeing domestic violence 

 those who are experiencing extreme financial pressure 
 
The Council assesses whether the applicant is eligible under the scheme, and if so, 
provides the applicant with details of how to proceed with making a purchase through 
Smarterbuys for new goods and CHAS/St Vincent’s or the British Heart Foundation for 
used goods. 
 
Table E below, shows the numbers of applications made for both new and used goods 
 
 Page 84



 

Table E To 31 Dec 
2016 

NEW GOODS  

Number of applications accepted on website 476 

Number approved to go to Smarterbuys 57 

Number who choose go to Smarterbuys  11 

% who choose go to Smarterbuys  19% 

Number who obtain new goods 4 

% who obtain new goods (of those approved) 7% 

USED GOODS  

Number of Applications received 377 

Number of applications approved 236 

% who are approved for used goods 76% 

 
 
4.2 Help for people in severe financial hardship 
 
Residents can often find themselves in such dire financial circumstances that they do not 
have enough money to buy food or to meet energy costs for cooking and heating. 
Experience of the previous DSP Crisis Award scheme has shown that it is often difficulties 
with the benefits system; poor money management; a lack of financial planning; personal 
or social issues; or a combination of these, which is the cause of the difficulties.  
 
Since 1 April 2015, the Council has been signposting to Bradford District Community 
Advice Network to provide this service and the provision of a food parcel or top-up fuel 
token. So far this year in the period up to 31 December the Council has spent £30,408.50 
on fuel top up.  
 
4.3 Local Welfare Provision in the future 
 
As the take up of the Council’s APS scheme is disappointingly low the Service has 
commissioned a piece of work, by an external provider, to understand the reasons for this 
and in particular why the demand is significantly lower than under the old scheme. This 
work has involved consultation with a number of stakeholders and the information 
obtained and recommendations made will inform what, if any, changes are needed to 
make the scheme more effective. The findings of this report are imminent. 
 
 
 
5  FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
The DHP scheme is funded by Government and the Council can top up the funding if it so 
wishes. The Government announced that Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) funding 
will be £800m nationally over the next 5 years with £150m of that being earmarked for this 
financial year and £185m next. Bradford received £1,108,611 in 2016/17. An 
announcement on the 2017/18 funding is expected shortly. 
 
The Committee will recall that the Council decided to set aside an under spend from the 
Discretionary Support Payments scheme in 2014/15, totalling £1,848,000, to fund the new 
arrangements for 2015/16 onwards. As at 31st December 2016, £1,647,000 remains in this 
fund. 

Page 85



 

 
 
6 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 
The extent to which Discretionary Housing Payments can mitigate the impacts of the Local 
Housing Allowance and other welfare changes must be viewed against a total spend on 
Housing Benefit in the District of over £180m. 
 
The continuing roll out of Universal Credit will impact on the current ways of working of the 
team administering DHP’s. The need to limit the length of awards to mitigate the risk of 
overpayment is something that could put pressure on resources and this will need to be 
monitored and managed carefully. 
 
If the Government publishes an indicative amount that it considers the Council should be 
spending on Local Welfare Provision, public expectations could be raised which the 
Council may not be able to meet. It would also make the Council’s budget setting process 
more challenging, particularly as budget proposals, and consequent consultation, do not 
take this into account.   
 
The Assisted Purchase Scheme is the subject of a review the results of which are 
imminent. This will feed into and inform what a future scheme may look like and at present 
the impact of increasing access is unknown. If applications are high, the key pressure will 
be on administration of the scheme, as provision is only limited by the funding available; or 
supply in the case of the providers of second-hand/reconditioned goods. Therefore, a 
cautious approach to publicising the Assisted Purchase Scheme will be taken.  
 
 

5. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 

The regulations covering Discretionary Housing Payments are The Discretionary Financial 
Assistance Regulations 2001. Although the legislation gives a very broad discretion, 
decisions must be made in accordance with ordinary principles about good decision 
making. In particular, the council has a duty to act fairly and consistently. 
 
Bradford Council’s administration of Discretionary Housing Payments complies with both 
the legislation and the Discretionary Housing Payments best practice guide.   
 
 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
The provision of support described in this report is based on need and income, and access 
to support by people with protected characteristics is not restricted. Provision is available 
to all low income households. National research indicates that Black and Ethnic Minorities 
communities are more likely to live in poverty, and in the district, there are substantial 
populations of these communities. In the absence of other support networks, these 
communities could be more likely to access the scheme than other communities.  
 
 
 Page 86



 

7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The schemes support improvement in the well being of individuals and families. It helps 
people to return to, or maintain themselves in, the community which helps people to 
remain within their community and support networks; thereby supporting the development 
of more sustainable communities. 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
There are no greenhouse gas emissions impacts 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
An inability to meet demand for financial support may result an increase in acquisitive 
crime.   

  
Helping to keep residents in their own homes, keeping families together, supporting the 
vulnerable or the elderly in the local community and assisting citizens through personal 
and difficult events all contribute towards improving community safety. 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
The Bradford Council DHP scheme complies with both the legislation and the Department 
for Work and Pensions best practice guide which has not raised any significant Human 
Rights implications. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
Any reductions in staffing levels as a result of any potential changes to either scheme will 
be consulted upon in the normal way;  
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

 
Not applicable 
 
 
 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

(for reports to Area Committees only) 
 
Not applicable 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
  
None 
 
 
 Page 87



 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Committee;  

 Note the contents of this report and the work that has taken place on both 
Discretionary Housing Payments and Local Welfare Support  

 Offer a view on how any future DHP scheme might look in the context of linking it to 
helping the young and most vulnerable in the District and the Chief Executives 
forthcoming report to Executive. 

 Provide a view on what any future Local Welfare Support Scheme should look like 
in view of the limited take up of the current scheme. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Household impact analysis 
 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 None 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 

Appendix 1 
Household Impact Analysis 

 
Social Sector Size Criteria  

Households Affected 

 At end Dec 2015 At end Dec 2016 Change 

By 1 room (14%) 2230 2148 - 82 

By 2+ rooms (25%) 482 470 - 12 

Total 2712 2618 - 94 

 
                                                            
Household Type 

 At end Dec 2015 At end Dec 2016 Change 

Couple - No Children 387 371 -16 

Couple - With Children 274 262 - 12 

Lone parent 563 552 - 11 

Single person 1488 1433 -55 

All 2712 2618 - 94 

 
 
Impact on Households with Children 

 At end Dec 2015 At end Dec 2016 Change 

Households with children 837 806 - 31 

Number of children impacted 1399 1353 - 46 

Avg. weekly loss per household £14.98 £15.03 £0.05 

 
 
District Annual Loss by Household Type 

 At end Dec 2015 At end Dec 2016 Change 

Couple - No Children £347,048 £330,434 -£16,614 

Couple - With Children £218,608 £207,745 - £10,863 

Lone parent £434,980 £429,137 - £5,843 

Single person £1,200,984 £1,157,669 -£43,315 

All £2,201,620 £2,124,985 -£76,635 

 
Benefit Cap  

 

 Number of 

Households Affected* 

Number of Children 

Impacted 

Weekly HB reduction  

At end Dec 2015 182 873 £8,450 

At end Dec 2016 152 743 £15,628 

Change -30 -130 £7,178 

 
*Note: All households affected by the Benefit Cap have Children  
Analysis by Ward 
 Page 89



 

DHP Analysis by Ward 
 
 

Ward Total No of 
Households with 

awards 

Properties 

Baildon Ward 34 7164 

Bingley Rural Ward 40 8285 

Bingley Ward 35 8662 

Bolton and Undercliffe Ward 32 6820 

Bowling and Barkerend Ward 104 8201 

Bradford Moor Ward 64 6045 

City Ward 94 9214 

Clayton & Fairweather Green Ward 61 6836 

Craven Ward 17 7521 

Eccleshill Ward 105 8051 

Great Horton Ward 58 6745 

Heaton Ward 28 5788 

Idle and Thackley Ward 56 7681 

Ilkley Ward 5 6925 

Keighley Central Ward 70 6672 

Keighley East Ward 43 7398 

Keighley West Ward 82 7254 

Little Horton Ward 99 7049 

Manningham Ward 70 5904 

Queensbury Ward 38 7193 

Royds Ward 101 7605 

Shipley Ward 45 7155 

Thornton and Allerton Ward 72 7451 

Toller Ward 21 5658 

Tong Ward 194 8828 

Wharfedale Ward 5 5215 

Wibsey Ward 42 6740 

Windhill and Wrose Ward 90 7061 

Worth Valley Ward 17 6521 

Wyke Ward 52 6603 

Grand Total 1774 214776 

 

Page 90



  

 

Report of the Chair of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to be held on Thursday 2 February 
2017. 

AN 
 
 

Subject:   
 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Work Programme 2016/17 
 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work 
programme for 2016/17.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Cllr Arshad Hussain 
Chair – Corporate  Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Portfolio:   
 
Corporate. 
Community Safety. 
 

Report Contact:  Mustansir Butt 
Overview and Scrutiny Lead 
Phone: (01274) 432574 
Email: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
 Corporate. 

Solicitor 

 
 
 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9/

mailto:mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk


  

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work 
programme for 2016/17, which is attached as appendix 1 to this report.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny Committees to produce 

a work programme. 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the responsibility for “the 

strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the corporate 
priority about customer services and e-government, that improve the Councils 
ability to deliver, govern and change, community cohesion and all other corporate 
matters not falling within the responsibility of any other Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.” (Council Constitution, Part 2, 6.2.1). 

 
3.2 The remit of this Committee also includes: 
 

 the co-ordination of the discharge of the Overview and Scrutiny role within the 
Council and in relation to external bodies; 

 supporting the Executive through its contribution towards the improvement of the 
Council’s performance; 

 co-ordinating the development of the Overview and Scrutiny role within the Council. 
 
3.3 Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that “work 

programming should be a continuous process”.  It is important to review work 
programmes, so that important or urgent issues that arise during the year are able 
to be scrutinised.  Furthermore, at a time of limited resources, it should also be 
possible to remove areas of work which have become less relevant or timely.  For 
this reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly 
reviewed by members of the committee throughout the municipal year.  

 
3.4 The work programme as agreed by the Committee will form the basis for the 

Committee’s work during the year, but will be amended as issues arise during the 
year. 

 
4. OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The Committee may choose to add to or amend the topics included in the 2016-17 

work programme for the committee. 
 
4.2 Members may wish to consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that it may wish to 

conduct. 
 
 
 

Page 92



  

 

5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
6.1 None. 
 

7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
 Community Cohesion and Equalities related issues are part of the work remit for 

this Committee. 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 None.  
 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 A key priority of work for this Committee related to the Overview and Scrutiny of the 

strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the priority of 
Safer and Stronger Communities. 

 
 As well as this, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is also the 

authority’s Crime and Disorder Committee under the provisions of Section 19 of the 
Police and Justice Act  2006. 

 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None. 
 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Work of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee has ward implications, but this 
depends on that nature of the topic. 

 

Page 93



  

 
9. Not for Publications Items 
 
 None.  
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 That members consider and comment on the areas of work included in the work 

programme. 
 
9.2 That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that they may wish to 

conduct. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix One – 2016-17 Work Programme for the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Appendix Two – Unscheduled Topics. 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Council Constitution. 
 

 

Page 94



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Wednesday, 29th June 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Secretariat deadline 16/06/2016. 
 1) Poverty Scrutiny Review. DRAFT Report - Key findings and  Mustansir Butt. 
 recommendations. 
 2) Consultation mechansims within the Council. To review how Bradford Council  Samantha Plum/Imran  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 communicates with its staff and  Rathore. recommendation from Wednesday 21  
 citizens relating to key changes and  October 2015.  Also a request from  
 developments. Overview and Scrutiny Chairs and  
 Deputy Chairs. 

 3) DRAFT Work Programme 2016-17. Discussion and agreement over the  Mustansir Butt. 
 areas of work for the Committee to  
 focus on in this Muncipal Year. 

 Wednesday, 20th July 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 30/06/2016. Secretariat deadline 07/07/2016. 
 1) Annual Finance and Performance outturn  Stuart Mckinnon- 
 report. Evans/Samantha Plum. 
 2) First Quarter Financial Position Statement. Stuart McKinnon-Evans. 
 3) Safer and Stronger Communities Plan. Rebecca Trueman/Amria  
 Khatun. 
 4) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 Work Programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Thursday, 21st July 2016 at Shipley Library. 
 1) Flooding Scrutiny Review. Information gathering session woth  Mustansir Butt. 
 residents, voluntayyr orgaindsations  
 and residents affected by the  
 December 2015 Floods. 

 20th January 2017 Page 1 of 7 

P
age 95



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 26th July 2016 at Victoria Hall. 
 1) Flooding Scrutiny Review. Information gatheirng session with  Mustansir Butt 
 residents, voluntary organisations and  
 businesses affected by the December  
 2015 floods. 

 Thursday, 11th August 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 21/07/2016. Secretariat deadline 28/07/2016. 
 1) Families First Project. Progress report. Mark Anlsow. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation from Thursday 3  
 December 2015. 

 2) Talent Management:  A Workforce  Progress against the Workforce  Sue Dunkley. Committee recommendation from  
 Development Programme for Bradford  Development Implemention Plan in 12  Wednesday 12 August 2015. 
 Council. months. 

 3) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Wednesday, 7th September 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 25/08/2016. Secretariat deadline 26/08/2016. 
 1) Interim report from the Children and Adult  Michael Jameson/Judith  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Services Strategic Directors explaining the  Kirk. Recommendation from Wednesday 20  
 reasons for the budget pressures in the  July 2016. 
 current year and the steps being made to  
 address them to the meeting of this  
 Committee on 7 September 2016. 

 2) Interim report from Adults Services Directors Bernard Lanigan/Lyn  
  explaining the budget pressures in the  Sowry. 
 current year and the steps being made to  
 address them to the meeting of this  
 Committee on 7 September 2016. 

 3) West Yorkshire Combined Authority and  Progress report to be included in the  Jamie Saunders. Committee recommendation from  
 Leeds City Region Enterprise Partneship. 2016-17 work Programme. Tuesday 8 September 2015. 
 4) Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report. Mustansir Butt. 

 20th January 2017 Page 2 of 7 

P
age 96



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Wednesday, 7th September 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 25/08/2016. Secretariat deadline 26/08/2016. 
 5) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Thursday, 29th September 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Secretariat deadline 15/09/2016. 
 1) Flooding Scrutiny Review. Key findings and review  Mustansir Butt. 
 recommendations. 

 Thursday, 6th October 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 16/09/2016. Secretariat deadline 22/09/2016. 
 1) Arrangements by Bradford Council and its  Progress report in 12 months. Paul Hill. Committee recommendation from  
 Partners to tackle Child Sexual Exploitation. Wednesday 7 October 2015. 
 2) Impact of leaving the EU on Bradford. Stuart Mckinnon  Recommendation from Counil on  
 Evans/Steve Hartley/Mike Tuesday 12 July 2016. 
  Cowlam/Ian Day/John  
 O'Hare. 

 3) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Wednesday, 19th October 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Secretariat deadline 06/10/2016. 
 1) WYPF Fossil Fuel Disinvestment. Mustansir Butt. Recommendation from Council. 

 Thursday, 3rd November 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 13/10/2016. Secretariat deadline 20/10/2016. 
 1) Mid Year Finance and Performance Report. Stuart McKinnon- 
 Evans/Sam Plum. 
 2) Income Streams into the Council. Report to incorporate member's  Stuart McKinnon- Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 comments. Evans/Tom Caselton. Recommendation from Wednesday 4  
 November 2015. 

 20th January 2017 Page 3 of 7 

P
age 97



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Thursday, 3rd November 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 13/10/2016. Secretariat deadline 20/10/2016. 
 3) Safer and Stronger Communtities Partnerhsip Rebecca Trueman/Amria  
  Performance and Resources. Khatun. 
 4) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Thursday, 1st December 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 17/11/2016. Secretariat deadline 24/11/2016. 
 1) Property Programme Progress. Report to also include details of the  Steph Moore. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Council's estate.  Officers to also have  recommendation from Thursday 3  
 liased with Members on Community  December 2015. 
 Assets based in their Wards. 

 2) Universal Credit. Report relating to the implementation of  Martin Stubbs. Committee recommendation from  
 Unversal Credit, as well as the  Tuesday 8 September 2015. 
 development of the Local delivery  
 Partnership be presented to this  
 committee in 9-12 months. To also  
 consider the re-commissioning of  
 Strategic Advice Services and on      
 the work un 

 3) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Wednesday, 14th December 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 24/11/2016. Secretariat deadline 01/12/2016. 
 1) Policing in the District. Further progress report which also  Ian Day/Rebecca  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 focuses on the implementation of the  Trueman. recommendation from Thursday 3  
 new operating models across the  December 2015. 
 District, with evidence of how the new 
  operating model is working. 

 2) Armed Forces Covenant. Progress report in 12 months. Helen Johnstone Committee recommendation from  
 Tuesday 8 October 2015. 
 20th January 2017 Page 4 of 7 

P
age 98



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Wednesday, 14th December 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 24/11/2016. Secretariat deadline 01/12/2016. 
 3) Bradford District Partnership. Report to focus on the key  Samantha Plum/Kate  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 performance measures and outcomes. McNicholas. Recommendation from Thursday 3  
 December 2015. 

 4) Industrial Services Group. Progress report in 12 months. Peter Keeley/Paul Egan. Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 7 October 2015. 
 5) Work Planning. There is a need to regularlay review  Mustansir Butt. 
 the work programme, in order to  
 prioritise and manage resources. 

 Thursday, 5th January 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 1) Call-In. Bradford District Flood Risk  Julian Jackson/Chris  
 Management Strategy. Eaton. 
 2) Families First programme. The cost benefit analysis for  Mark Anslow. Committee recommendation from  
 Bradford’s Families First Programme be Thursday 11 August 2016. 
  presented to this Committee by the end 
  of the year. 

 Wednesday, 11th January 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 15/12/2016. Secretariat deadline 22/12/2016. 
 1) DRAFT Council Budget 2016-17. Stuart McKinnon-Evans. Member request. 
 2) Risk Management across the Council. Further progress report, which also  Stuart McKnnon- Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 includes progress against the Council's Evans/Mark St. Romaine. Recommendation from Wednesday 6  
  Corporate Business processess and  January 2016. 
 how risk can be better embedded into  
 our risk management processess. 

 Thursday, 2nd February 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 16/01/2017. Secretariat deadline 19/01/2017. 
 1) Third Quarter Financial Position Statement. Stuart McKinnon-Evans. 
 2) Poverty Scrutiny Review. Progressgress against the revieew  Martin Stubbs. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendations. Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 29 June 2016. 

 20th January 2017 Page 5 of 7 

P
age 99



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Thursday, 2nd February 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 16/01/2017. Secretariat deadline 19/01/2017. 
 3) Discretionary Housing Payments. Further progress report. Martin Stubbs. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 2 March 2016. 

 4) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to pioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Thursday, 2nd March 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 09/02/2017. Secretariat deadline 16/02/2017. 
 1) Prevent Action Plan for the District. Ian Day/Michael Churley. Corporate Overview and Scrutiy  
 Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 12 August 2015. 

 2) Council Wide Managing Attendance. Sue Dunkley. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 3 February 2016. 

 3) Adults Safeguarding. Report to focus on the Safeguarding  Robert Stachan. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 arrangements in place. Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 2 March 2016. 

 4) IT Digital Strategy. David Cawthray. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 29 June 2016. 

 5) WYCA/LEP update. Jamie Saunders. 
 6) Council’s investment portfolio and policy. That this Committee requests that a  Ben Middleton/Steph  Committee recommenbdation from  
 report detailing information about the  Moore. Thursday 1 December 2016. 
 Council’s investment portfolio and  
 policy be presented to this Committee in 
  March 2107. 

 7) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 20th January 2017 Page 6 of 7 

P
age 100



 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 

 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Thursday, 30th March 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 09/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 16/03/2017. 
 1) West Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel. Verbal update from Panel members. TBC. 
 2) Fourth Quarter Financial Position Statement. Stuart McKinnon-Evans. 
 3) Council Tax Collection. Martin Stubbs. 
 4) Councils Corporate approach to Consultation Samantha Plum/Elaine  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
  and Engagement. Ayris. Committee recommendation from  
 Wednesday 29 June 2016. 

 5) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritse  
 and manage resources. 

 Wednesday, 26th April 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 30/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 11/04/2017. 
 1) Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership  Rebecca Trueman/Amria  
 Performance and Resources. Khatun. 
 2) Business Rates. Martin Stubbs. 
 3) Domestic Violence Scrutiny Review. DRAFT Report - key findings and  Mustansir Butt. 
 recommendations. 
 4) Resolution Tracking. Tracking the progress of  Mustansir Butt. 
 recommendations made by the  
 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny  
 Committee. 

 5) Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report. Mustansir Butt. 

 20th January 2017 Page 7 of 7 

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Scrutiny Committees Forward Plan 
 Unscheduled Items 
 Corporate O&S Committee 
 Agenda item Item description Author Management  

 0 Neighbourhood Panels. Progress report. Rebecca Trueman. 

 1 Commissioning Framework  Porgress report. Shahid Nazir. 
 Implementation Plan. 

 2 Policy Review within the Council. Information Item. 

 3 Scrutiny Review - Domestic Violence. DRAFT Terms of Reference. Mustansir Butt. 

 4 Bullying. 

 5 Equality Action Progress. Progress against the new equality objectives. Samantha Plum/Kathryn  
 Jones. 

 6 Income streams into Childrens and  
 Adults and Social Care. 

 7 Universal Credit. That a briefing note be circulated to Members of this Committee on Universal Credit, which includes its Martin Stubbs. 
  likely impacts and the number of people in the district that will be affected. 

 8 Property Programme. That the next report in 12 months time, also includes details of the forward strategy for the property  Ben Middleton/Steph  
 programme. Moore. 

 9 West Yorkshire Police and Crime  Update from Panel Members. Cllr Tariq Hussain.  Cllr  
 Panel. Andrew Mallinson. Cllr  
 Steve Pullan. 

 10 Revised Safer and Stronger  Ian Day/Rebecca  
 Communities Plan. Trueman/Amria Khatum. 

 Page 1 of 1 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 QTR 3 FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT FOR 2016-17
	7 BRADFORD POVERTY SCRUTINY REVIEW AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS PROGRESS REPORT
	Doc AL Appendix A
	Doc AL Appendix B
	Doc AL Appendix C

	8 DISCRETIONARY PAYMENTS
	9 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
	Doc AN Appendix A
	Doc AN Appendix B


